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MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR AND CEO
The Naracoorte Lucindale Council has continued to implement its strategic plan which 
focuses on five themes: Prosperous Community, Healthy Landscapes, Liveable 
Neighbourhoods, Harmony and Culture and Progressive Leadership.  The first four 
themes relate to achieving the Community Vision to be the best place in regional South 
Australia to live, work, do business, raise a family and retire.  The fifth theme, 
Progressive Leadership, outlines what is required to build an organisation that can 
effectively deliver the actions and targets in the Strategic Plan.

To maximise development and prosperity in the district, Council has a role in facilitating 
economic development, particularly in relation to creating an environment and 
atmosphere that understands the needs and challenges of business and attracts people 
to want to live and work in the district.

Road infrastructure that meets the needs of business is a key driver of economic 
development.  Council continues to strategically examine and plan for future road 
infrastructure that focuses on improving heavy vehicle access, linking the heavy vehicle 
network that serves the agricultural sector and supporting industries and providing 
access to future industrial land developments.  This includes identifying key road and 
intersection infrastructure for construction and upgrading and highlighting the 
importance of these projects with the State and Federal Governments.

Growth in tourism is also a key economic driver and the World Heritage listed 
Naracoorte Caves provides a unique opportunity for the region to attract more visitors
and economic prosperity to the region.  During 2017-2018 the implementation of the 
Naracoorte Caves Connection Concept Statement commenced.  The Concept Statement 
is a list of proposals to increase economic benefit to Naracoorte that can be leveraged 
from the Naracoorte Caves World Heritage site.  The initial focus was on supporting 
businesses to capitalise on the Caves connection with a Business Workshop and Caves 
Open Night.  The other focus for 2017-2018 was on improving vehicular wayfinding for 
visitors throughout the district.  In particular, enticing tourists to explore Naracoorte, 
and to ensure there is adequate signage between the Town Centre and Naracoorte 
Caves.  The actions in the wayfinding report will be implemented over the next few
years commencing in 2018-2019.  

Council recognises that agriculture is an important contributor to economic prosperity 
and has continued to host the Limestone Coast Red Meat Cluster and operate the 
Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange.  The Limestone Coast Red Meat Cluster,
through collaboration, focuses on ensuring a vibrant future for growing the Limestone 
Coast’s Red Meat Sector.  The Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange, which Council 
operates as a standalone business, provides a significant direct economic benefit to the 
district as well as substantive indirect benefits that flow to community.  The grand total 
value of livestock sold at the Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange in 2017-2018 was 
over $141 million.

Council has continued to focus on responsible management of its budget, ensuring that 
projects are driven by good planning, are consistent with Council’s policies and are 
within Council’s financial capacity.  During 2017-2018 to ensure strategic documents are 
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relevant to current community needs the Open Space Strategy, Dog and Cat Management 
Plan, Infrastructure and Asset Management Plan, and Naracoorte Regional Livestock 
Exchange Management Plan and Long Term Financial Plan were reviewed and updated.  
These documents ensure Council reviews its existing services and assets and plans for 
the future in a financially sustainable manner.  

Preliminary work has occurred for master planning that will be undertaken in 2018-2019
for the Naracoorte and District Sports Centre, the townships of Lucindale and Frances, 
Naracoorte Swimming Lake and the Naracoorte Creek Precinct.   

Major projects that were undertaken in Naracoorte included the construction of 
footpaths on Stewart Terrace and Smith Street, upgrade of stormwater infrastructure on 
McCoy Street, improvements to the Stewart Terrace and McDonnell Street intersection, 
the Nature Play Development at the Memorial Parklands and Barclay Avenue 
reconstruction.  Other road construction projects included Bool Lagoon Road, Gap Road, 
McCoy Street/Livingston Street, Moyhall Road, Schinckel and Mill Road (Kybybolite), and
Hakea and Sheoak Road (Lucindale).

There are many services that Council provides on an annual basis to ensure that our 
community is safe and allows community members to actively participate in society.  
This includes development planning and control, building safety assessment, 
environmental health services, Public Library services, visitor information, street 
cleaning, waste collection, on-street parking management and town halls and 
cemeteries.  

Council continues to support a range of community and civic events, and activities. In 
September 2017 six delegates from Tai’an, which is in the middle of China’s Shandong 
Province, visited Naracoorte, the only town the group visited in South Australia.  The 
visit was a direct result of Council’s support of the State Government previous trade 
missions to Shandong Province in China. In January, Council was pleased to receive 
confirmation from the Federal Government that funding for the Volunteer Resource 
Service and therefore the delivery of volunteer support services in the Limestone Coast
will continue until June 2021.

Community involvement in Harmony Day continues to steadily grow recognising that 
cultural diversity is one of our greatest strengths and that migrants are important 
contributors to the overall prosperity of the community. Of particular note this year 
was the celebration held in May 2018 acknowledging Naracoorte Art Gallery’s 50th year 
and the Naracoorte Regional Cultural Trust’s 20th year.  

We would like to thank the Elected Members, Council staff, volunteers, ratepayers and 
residents for your ongoing support to make Naracoorte Lucindale the best place in 
regional South Australia to live, work, do business, raise a family and retire.

Mayor Erika Vickery OAM CEO Trevor Smart
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COUNCIL STRUCTURE & ELECTED MEMBERS
 

Mayor Erika Vickery OAM Councillor Craig McGuire, 
Deputy Mayor

Councillor Tom Dennis Councillor Julie Earl Cr Scott McLachlan

Councillor Malcolm McLean Councillor Trevor Rayner Councillor Toby Robinson

Councillor Damien Ross Councillor Ken Schultz Cr Rebecca Smith



Naracoorte Lucindale Council, Annual Report 2017-2018  6 

COUNCIL AREA
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COUNCIL PROFILE

0BItem of interest 1BNumber

Size  452,013 ha
Elected Members including the Mayor  11
Length of constructed road network  1,614 km
State Electorate  MacKillop
Federal Electorate  Barker

2BPerformance Measure 3B2017/18 4B2016/17
     

5BThe Council Area
Naracoorte Lucindale population 8,628 8,291
Electors 5,782 5,782
Representation quota 525 525
     

6BStrategic Plan Progress
Percentage of Strategic Plan targets underway 
with investment and activity (%) 73% 66%

7BTheme 1 - Prosperous Community 8B2017/18 9B2016/17
     

10BA sought after visitor destination
Total visitor nights in Limestone Coast (SATC) 1,900,000 1,873,000
Total tourism expenditure in Limestone Coast 
(SATC) ($) $321 million $308 million
Number of in-person visitors to the 
Naracoorte Visitor Information Centre 10,447 10,817
Number of inquiries to Naracoorte Visitor 
Information Centre 11,806 12,281
Number of Visitor Information Packs provided 885 534
Visitor Facebook followers 264 209
Visitor Facebook reach 17,770 52,081
Google Analytics Website Pageviews  
(Tourism) 15,462 6,705
Bookings at the Naracoorte Town Hall 233 225
Occupancy of the Naracoorte Town Hall 16,407 16,611
Bookings for the Naracoorte Town Hall for 
external (non-Council) users (% of total) 93% 98%



Naracoorte Lucindale Council, Annual Report 2017-2018  8 

Number of bookings for the Lucindale Town 
Hall 11 14
11BA vibrant and progressive business centre 
and townships
Number of applicants for Entrepreneur/ 
Innovation Fund 4 4
Number of grants paid from Entrepreneur/ 
Innovation Fund 2 2
Innovation Fund recipients with ongoing 
businesses 12 months following grant receipt 
(%) 

100% 100%

12BDiverse range of thriving primary 
industries
Grand total value of livestock sold on behalf 
of primary producers at the Naracoorte 
Regional Livestock Exchange ($)

$141,060,772 $157,860,016

Number of cattle sold at the Naracoorte 
Regional Livestock Exchange 70,062 75,543
Number of sheep and lambs sold at the 
Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange 416,316 382,844
Amount of external funds attracted to the 
district for industry development projects ($) 
eg Red Meat Cluster  

$418,234 $230,500

13BTheme 2 - Healthy Landscapes 14B2017/18 15B2016/17
     

16BSustainable Land Management Practices
Volume of waste to landfill per capita (tonne) 1,746 1,771
Volume of recycling per capita (tonne) 519 500
Number of hectares of biodiversity restoration 
(target is 5 ha per year) 3 18
Number of Garage Sale Trail Registrations 20 20
Cost to dispose of putrescible waste ($/tonne) $225 $212
Amount of the annual waste levy ($/property) $320 $294
17BWater resources and Ecosystems
Volume of the Council water take (ML) for 
open space 1,307.79 1,278.16
Volume of the Council water take (ML) for 
NRLE 25 26
Length of the Naracoorte Creek (km) 
maintained 1.3km 1.3km
Length of the Naracoorte Creek (km) restored 1km
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18BTheme 3 - Harmony and Culture 19B2017/18 20B2016/17
     

21BAn inclusive community
Number of events hosted by Council 9 8
Number of events supported by Council 18 16
22BA creative, artistic and learning community
Number of members of the Naracoorte Public
Library 2,978 2,651
Number of items borrowed from the 
Naracoorte Public Library 61,706 63,561
Number of visitors to the Naracoorte Public 
Library 51,138 49,074
Number of library programs at the Naracoorte 
Public Library 55 88
Number of participants / attendees for library 
programs 623 554
Number of visitors to the Lucindale 
Community Library (not students) 2,528 2,146
23BA healthy and resilient community
Length of walking and/or cycling trail 
projects completed (kms) 2.8 1.3
Number of public open space developments 1 2

24BTheme 4 - Liveable Neighbourhoods 25B2017/18 26B2016/17
     

27BA well-planned district
Number of development applications 176 158
Total value of development approvals ($) $13,146,749 $16,050,173
Number of dwellings approved 20 23
Number of CAP applications processed 7 4
Number of development plan compliance 
issues 25 32
Number of septic systems approved 18 9
Number of building inspections undertaken 81 88
28BA safe and integrated transport network
Total transport infrastructure project grants 
($) $477,000 $980,500
Number of major road reconstruction projects 
completed (target of 2 per year) 5 7
Distance of road re-sheets as identified in NLC 
Road Hierarchy (m) 10,200 14,800
Distance of road reseals as identified in NLC 
Road Hierarchy (m) 9,573 3,290
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29BPreserve the built heritage and character
Number of projects completed under the 
Heritage Restoration Fund 4 1

30BTheme 5 Progressive Leadership 31B2017/18 32B2016/17
     

33BProgressive and representative Elected 
Member leadership
Number of resolutions carried by Elected 
Members 341 313
34BOrganisational Excellence
Number of external customer requests 618 693
Number of policies reviewed 15 14
35BSustainable Community Finances and 
Assets
Total operating expenditure $18.469m $18.811m
Rateable properties 6,158 6,147
Total Rateable Capital Value $2.108billion $2.097billion
Refer to financial indicators

36BEffective delivery of projects and services
Percent of projects in the annual works 
program delivered (85% target) 80% 85%
37BEffective community communication and 
engagement
Media releases distributed 27 26
Number of community consultations 
undertaken 8 7
Number of community responses from 
consultation processes 14 72
Your Say Website Total Visits 2,000 2,700
Your Say Website engaged visitors 14 85
Your Say Website informed visitors 270 875
Your Say Website aware visitors 1,467 2,000
Your Say Website new registrations 8 63
Council Website Pageviews  123,845 104,421
Council Facebook reach 426,492 319,437
Council Facebook followers 1,601 1,199
Number of local events promoted on Council’s 
online event calendar 544 289
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38BEngage external stakeholders to leverage 
local opportunities
Number of external grants received 9 10
39BCouncil is a preferred employer
Number of Council staff serving  
>10 years 36% 35%
>20 years 20% 13%
Number of Workers Compensation Claims 6 9
Hours of Loss Time Injury (actual hours) 390 251.5
Percentage of workforce turnover (%) 9% 8%
Percentage of Council workforce in age:
<35 17% 15%
36–50 41% 38%
51–65 39% 43%
>65 3% 4%
     

40BServices 41B2017/2018 42B2016/17
     

Number of local suppliers (goods and services) 237 250
Value of expenditure in our Council district 
(goods and services) $4.198m $4.9m
Number of parking expiations issued 38 57
Number of dogs registered 2,015 1,964
Number of dog impounded 80 107
Number of dogs returned to owner or 
rehomed 76 (95%) 88 (82%)
No of burials 54 60
Number of Citizenship ceremonies conducted 1 4
Number of new citizens 7 31
Number of food inspections 52 33
Number of food infringement notices issued 2 1
Number of waste water inspections 4 6
Number of buildings inspected for Building 
Fire Safety Audits 13 12
Number of incidents of illegal dumping 
investigated and removed by Council 14 17
Number of fire prevention/fire hazard notices 
sent 87 31
Number of fire prevention / fire hazard works 
undertaken by Council 5 0
Number of fire / burn off permits issued 175 219
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COUNCIL PROFILE
In the heart of South Australia’s renowned Limestone Coast, midway between Adelaide 
and Melbourne, lies the Naracoorte Lucindale district encompassing an area of 452,013 
hectares.

The main centre of Naracoorte and the surrounding townships offer a diverse range of 
unforgettable experiences: lush farmland scenery, natural wonders and abundant
wildlife, wetlands of international importance, not to mention fine wine and fresh local 
produce.

Natural features of international significance include the World Heritage listed 
Naracoorte Caves, along with the Bool Lagoon Game Reserve and Hacks Lagoon 
Conservation Park. The World Heritage Naracoorte Caves preserves Australia's most 
complete marsupial fossil record for the past 500,000 years, is among the world's 10 
greatest fossil sites and is South Australia’s only World Heritage Listed Area.

The Bool Lagoon Game Reserve and Hacks Lagoon Conservation Park are recognised 
under the Ramsar Convention on wetlands as a Wetland of International Significance. 
Bool Lagoon is one of the largest and most diverse freshwater lagoon systems in southern 
Australia.

The district is known for its reliable rainfall and underground water. It’s home to a 
strong rural economy featuring beef and dairy cattle, sheep for both wool and meat, as 
well as a diverse range of crops, wine grape production and wine making.  

The district is central to some of Australia's most famous wine producing areas. Two 
large enterprises; Teys Australia red meat processor and Mini Jumbuk wool 
manufacturing centre value add to the primary produce with large grain storage 
facilities supporting the cereal growing industry.

Naracoorte has a vibrant retail precinct and is a major service hub, offering a range of 
accommodation, dining and shopping experiences as well as health services and 
education facilities.  

The proud communities of Lucindale, Frances, Kybybolite and Hynam surrounding 
Naracoorte feature well maintained parks and sporting facilities, museums, historical 
sites and major events including the South East Field Days, Taste the Limestone Coast 
Festival and the Frances Folk Gathering.

Other local communities in the district are Keppoch, The Gap, Cadgee, Binnum, 
Lochaber, Wild Dog Valley, Stewart Range, Hynam, Mount Light, Laurie Park, Moyhall, 
Koppamurra, Bool Lagoon, Struan, Joanna, Wrattonbully, Spence, Woolumbool, Avenue 
Range, Coles, Conmurra and Fox.

The district has 8,628 residents. The principal office for the Naracoorte Lucindale 
Council is located in DeGaris Place, Naracoorte.
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STRATEGIC PLAN
The Strategic Plan 2016-2026 outlines a vision and outcomes desired for the district and 
the strategies, key projects and services Council will deliver between 2016 and 2026.

Many of the strategies contained in the Strategic Plan rely on working in partnership 
with others. Council’s responsibility is to deliver the Community Vision by being a 
progressive leader and creating an organisation that promotes continuous improvement.

Council may be able to take a supporting or facilitating role, however we know that this 
plan cannot be achieved without the hard work, passion and dedication of the 
community.

Community Vision Statement
 
By 2026 Naracoorte Lucindale Council will be:

The best place in regional South Australia to live, work, do business, raise a 
family and retire. 
Created by having a Prosperous Community with Healthy Landscapes, 
Liveable Neighbourhoods and a focus on Harmony and Culture.

An organisation known for:

Progressive Leadership with strong community connections, efficiently managing our 
shared assets, services and natural resources.
 

What we want to look like in ten years time?
The plan has four themes which contribute to achieving the Community Vision.  The fifth 
theme focuses on Council as an organisation and what is required for it to be effective in 
the various roles that it has to play in the community.
 
THEME 1 - Prosperous community

• Facilitating and supporting sustainable growth to achieve economic prosperity.
 
THEME 2 - Healthy Landscapes 
 
• Working together to protect and enhance our natural environment for the future.
 
THEME 3 - Harmony and Culture
 
• A safe, healthy and diverse community celebrating our similarities and 

differences.
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THEME 4 - Liveable neighbourhoods
 
• A range of well-planned neighbourhoods and public space, designed with a strong 

sense of identity and place.

THEME 5 - Progressive leadership

• A well led and managed district supported by a professional approach to 
managing infrastructure, and the delivery of projects and services to the 
community.

Strategies

Underpinning the Strategic Plan 2016-2026 are a range of other strategies, plans and 
hierarchies. 

Infrastructure and Asset Management 
Strategy

Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange 
Strategic Management Plan

Open Space Strategy Aerodrome Strategic Plan

Plans

Annual Business Plan and Budget Bike and Walking Master Plan

Community Art Framework Community Land Management Plans

Development Plan Dog and Cat Management Plan

Economic Development Plan Long Term Financial Plan

Regional Health and Wellbeing Plan Structure Plan

Suicide Prevention Action Plan 

Hierarchy and Service Levels

Footpath, Open Space and Road Hierarchy and Service Levels

Copies of these plans are available on the Council website at
www.naracoortelucindale.sa.gov.au
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PROJECT PRIORITIES FOR 2017-2018
 
The following tables indicate by each of the five themes in the Strategic Plan 2016-2026
the planned projects and achievements for 2017-2018.

THEME 1 – PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY
 
Facilitating and supporting sustainable growth to achieve economic 
prosperity

Outcome Planned Project 
2017-2018

Achievements
2017-2018

A sought after visitor 
destination

A vibrant and progressive 
business centre and townships

Diverse range of thriving 
primary industries

Continued support for 
Tourism Industry 
Development (LCLGA 
Contribution)

Continued support for RDA 
Limestone Coast (LCLGA 
Contribution)

Economic Strategy (review the 
efficient use of Council buildings & 
services in the Naracoorte CBD, 
including the Visitor Information 
Centre)

Contribution to a vibrant & 
current district brochure

Continued implementation 
of Community Art Program

Upgrade to the NRLE cattle 
selling pens (50% grant funded 
anticipated and balance funded by 
a 20-year loan & contribution from 
agents.  This project may not 
proceed if grant funding is not 
successful.)

Continuation of Heritage 
Signs Project in Naracoorte

Design eastern & western 
town entrances (Naracoorte)

Partner with Adelaide 
University to commence the 
ARC Linkage Project 

Continued to support Tourism 
Industry Development at a 
regional level and the 
implementation of the 
Regional Priorities to Grow 
our Visitor Economy

Continued to support RDA
Limestone Coast (LCLGA 
Contribution)

Economic Strategy – this will 
occur as Asset Management 
Plans and service levels are 
reviewed and updated 

As district brochure stocks 
were still sufficient funds 
were expended on printing 
Naracoorte Town Maps and 
developing a website that 
utilises listings from the 
Australia Tourism Data 
Warehouse

Community Art Framework –
Geoffrey Carran Red Tail 
Black Cockatoo Mural for 
Bank Place, Naracoorte 
funded and two community 
art projects funded in 
2016/17 completed during
2017/18:

o Naracoorte Art Gallery –
Mega Fauna mural
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(subject to project receiving 
grant funding)

Caves Connection Project

Continue to facilitate the 
Red Meat Cluster Project 
(includes in-kind)

Encourage new ideas & ways 
of doing business by
continuing the Innovation 
Fund (introduced in 2015-16)

Upgrade Corporate Signage

o LINC - Volunteer groups 
stobie pole murals

Upgrade to the NRLE cattle 
selling pens did not proceed 
due to a lack of external 
funding. After 3 grant 
funding applications were not 
successful over a period of 
nearly 2 years, the Board has 
committed to a staged 
approach to the upgrade of 
the cattle selling pens

Stage 2 leading to the 
Sheep’s back museum now 
complete. Investigations for 
the creek walk and rail 
corridor next 17/18.

Design eastern & western 
town entrances postponed 
due to Council seeking 
Wayfinding advise as part of 
the Caves Connection 
project.

University of Adelaide-led 
research project focusing on 
the rich fossil history of 
Naracoorte Caves commenced 
in January 2018

Caves Connection Concept 
Statement proposals
initiated:

o Held a business workshop 
and Caves Open night for 
businesses to generate 
ideas that leverage value 
from the Naracoorte 
Caves and grow tourism 
and the visitor economy

o Caves Connection 
Business Prize offered for 
the first person or 
business to generate 
$1,000 in sales out of any 
of the Caves related 
business ideas or any 
other idea.  The $3,000 
prize was awarded to Alex 
Haynes for his hand 
carved Diprotodons

o Wayfinding Advice 
received on how to 
improve vehicular 
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wayfinding for visitors and 
tourists throughout the 
Naracoorte district

Red Meat Cluster activities 
for the year included

o Presentations / meetings 
with 8 stakeholder groups 

o Financial management 
workshop for 15 farm 
businesses 

o ecchymosis project 
examining causes and 
value of damage from 
ecchymosis to Limestone 
Coast abattoirs, producers 
and retailers

o agent workshops 
providing a connection 
between stock agents, 
producers and processors 
in the Limestone Coast

Two businesses funded from 
the Entrepreneur / Innovation 
Fund:

o Mason Education received 
$6,377 to purchase 
resources to ensure that 
their students have access 
to the latest educational 
development

o T E Storage and Logistics 
received $3,000 to 
establish a strategic plan 
to realise the vision of 
creating an industrial hub 
on the outskirts of 
Naracoorte

New entrance signs installed 
on Council’s six main road 
entrances  
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THEME 2 – HEALTHY LANDSCAPES

Working together to protect and enhance our natural environment for the 
future

Outcome Planned Project 
2017-2018

Achievements
2017-2018

Contribute to sustainable land 
management practices

Water resources and 
ecosystems are protected and 
restored

Continued support for 
Regional Waste Coordinator 
(LCLGA Contribution)

Continued emphasis on 
waste management and the 
reduction of waste to 
landfill

Hard waste disposal (first 
free weekend held in early 
2017)

Management of asbestos in 
Council owned buildings  

Bushfire Mitigation & Corella 
Management

Upgrade Stormwater at 
Stewart Terrace, Naracoorte

Stormwater Management 
Planning Deviation 
Road/Schinckel Road 
Catchment Area

Installation of Early Flood 
Warning Monitoring System 
in the Naracoorte Creek 
(part grant funded -
$60,900) 

Continued to support 
Regional Waste Coordinator –
the group implemented waste
education initiatives and 
developed a regional waste 
infrastructure project plan.

Continued emphasis on waste 
management and the 
reduction of waste to landfill

Garage Sale Trail held on 
Saturday 21 and Sunday 22nd 
October with 20 sales 
registered, a 19% increase 
from 2015, and the third time 
consecutively achieving the 
most sales per capita in South 
Australia and ranking 12th on 
the national leader board. 

Two free hard waste days 
were held to assist with the 
reduction of illegal dumping –
460 vehicles brought waste to 
the transfer station over the 
two days.

Management of asbestos in 
Council owned buildings
ongoing reducing the number 
of buildings with asbestos 
materials present.

Bushfire Mitigation ongoing 
for the year & Corella 
Management continuing with 
new technology to be used in 
2018/19 as a trial

Stormwater at Stewart 
Terrace/ MacDonnell Street 
intersection Naracoorte
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upgraded

Stormwater Management 
Planning Deviation 
Road/Schinckel Road 
Catchment Area design 
completed

Design of an Early Flood 
Warning Monitoring System in 
the Naracoorte Creek (part 
grant funded - $60,900)

THEME 3 – HARMONY AND CULTURE

A safe, healthy and diverse community celebrating our similarities and 
differences
 

Outcome Planned Project 
2017-2018

Achievements
2017-2018

An inclusive community

A creative and artistic 
community

Learning community

A healthy and resilient 
community

Continued support for 
Regional Star Club Officer 
(LCLGA Contribution)

Extension of hosting of the 
Regional Volunteer 
Management Program to 31 
December 2017 (grant funded)

Sponsorship and support 
provided to annual programs, 
community events, festivals 
and Community Facilities: -

o Harmony Day
o Seniors Month
o Science Week 
o Youth Activities
o Lucindale Field Days
o Frances Folk Festival
o TASTE the Limestone 

Coast
o Christmas in the Square, 

Lucindale Xmas Party & 
Special Kids Xmas Party 
(Adelaide)

o Continued support of 
Naracoorte Art Gallery 
(including maintenance)

Continued support for 
Regional Star Club Officer 
(LCLGA Contribution)

Extension of hosting of the 
Regional Volunteer 
Management Program to 30
June 2021 (grant funded)

Sponsorship and support 
provided to annual 
programs, community 
events, festivals and 
Community Facilities: -

o South East Field Days
o Frances Folk Festival
o TASTE the Limestone 

Coast
o Christmas in the Square, 

Lucindale Xmas Party & 
Special Kids Xmas Party 
(Adelaide)

o Continued support of 
Naracoorte Art Gallery 
(including provision for 
maintenance)
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Community Art & Science 
Event (part grant funded) 
(new Event for 2017-18)

Kybybolite Memorial Sports 
Club Inc Lighting & Power 
Supply Upgrade (subject to 
Club raising sufficient funding 
for the project)

Events at the Library 

Support for community 
wellbeing

Support Limestone Coast Drug 
Program (LCLGA Contribution)

Development of a Natural 
Burial Ground 

Assess and repair walls at 
Naracoorte Swimming Lake

Upgrade the Naracoorte 
Public Library (funded 50% 
grant – not realised yet; 50% 
loan.  This project may not 
proceed if a grant is not 
realised.)

Community Art & Science 
Event (partly funded by 
Inspiring South Australia’s, 
2017 South Australian 
Regional Science-Arts 
Collaboration part grant 
funded) - “Naracoorte Caves 
- World Heritage on our 
doorstep” told the science-
related story the Naracoorte 
Caves, to the wider 
community using visual arts 
science story telling 
workshops (18 and 19 July 
2017), art exhibition at the 
Naracoorte Regional Art 
Gallery (13th August to 10th 
September 2017) and live 
performance Footsteps 
Around the Campfire (27 
April 2018)

Kybybolite Memorial Sports 
Club Inc Lighting & Power 
Supply Upgrade – this project 
has not progressed at this 
stage.

The following ranges of 
events were held at the
Naracoorte Public Library:

o Story time
o School holiday activities
o Author events
o Little Bang Discovery 

Club
o Tax Help
o Book Clubs
o Garage Sale Trail
o Library tours for groups
o Migrant Resource Centre 

session
o Family history research
o Tech Savvy for Seniors

Supported community 
wellbeing by hosting the 
following community events 

o Harmony Day
o Every Generation Music 

Festival 
o Science Week activity 

“Caves Connection –
Fossils, World Heritage 
and More”
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Letters of support provided 
o Triple J One Night Stand 

application by Lucindale
o Limestone Ladies CWA 

towards their grant 
application for funding 
from FRRR for building 
improvement

o Naracoorte Independent 
Learning Centre’s 
application to Stand Like 
Stone’s Community 
Capacity Building Grants 
2018 for its student trip 
to Cambodia

o Lucindale Area School 
Governing Council (as 
resolved by Council 
194/18) for its grant 
application for funding 
from the Community 
Recreation and Sport 
Facilities Program to 
construct a swimming 
pool within the Lucindale 
Area School grounds

o Naracoorte National 
Trust

o Bool Lagoon Hall
o Naracoorte Migrant 

Resource Centre

Participated in the 
Australian Migrant Resource 
Centre - Naracoorte Local 
Area Coordination group

Community garden’s twenty 
one established plots were 
all leased to local gardeners

Supported the LCLGA Drug 
Program 

Development of a Natural 
Burial Ground not achieved 
during 2017-2018

The walls of the Naracoorte 
Swimming Lake were sealed 
with a protective coating to 
extend their life and reduce 
leakage

Upgrade the Naracoorte 
Public Library – schematic 
design developed
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THEME 4 – LIVEABLE NEIGHBOURHOODS
 
A range of well-planned neighbourhoods and public space, designed with a 
strong sense of identity and place.

Outcome Planned Project 
2017-2018

Achievements
2017-2018

A well planned district that 
meets the current and future 
needs of the community

A safe and integrated 
transport network 

Preserve the built heritage 
and character of the district

Contribution to the State 
Government Planning Portal 
(legislated contribution)

Develop Memorial Parklands 
Natural Play Area (seeking 
$35,000 grant funding)

Establishment of a dog park at 
Market Square

Upgrade playground, Musgrave
Avenue Lucindale

Improved maintenance at 
Cockatoo Lake (slashing, new 
fire pits & improved signage)

Continued support for 
Heritage Advisor (LCLGA 
Contribution)

Continuation of the Heritage 
Assistance Fund to assist with 
maintenance of sites listed on 
the ‘Local Heritage Register’

Allocation for master planning

Continue the development of 
the Storyboard Signs, which 
tell a story about the heritage 
of each town

Contribution to the State 
Government Planning Portal 
(legislated contribution)
delayed on the Minister’s 
request

Memorial Parklands Natural 
Play Area Stage 1 completed 

Dog park at Market Square 
completed

Playground upgraded at 
Musgrave Avenue, Lucindale

Improved maintenance at 
Cockatoo Lake (slashing, new 
fire pits) and investigating 
new signage

Continued support for 
Heritage Advisor (LCLGA 
Contribution) working with 
local residents. 13 individual 
property owners assisted by 
Councils consultant.

Continuation of the Heritage 
Assistance Fund to assist with 
maintenance of sites listed on 
the ‘Local Heritage Register’
modified this year to allow 
State heritage listed buildings 
to be eligible. $5,000 
allocated in the financial year 
for two properties. Equalling
to over $57,000 worth of 
heritage work undertaken on 
listed properties.

Allocation for master 
planning. Master planning 
Commenced for Frances. 
Lucindale set to commence in 
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March 2019. Been held up 
until the appointment of new 
Council

Research completed for 
Storyboard Signs for Frances, 
Kybybolite, Lucindale and 
Hynam

THEME 5 – PROGRESSIVE LEADERSHIP

A well led and managed district supported by a professional approach to 
managing infrastructure through the delivery of projects and services to the 
community.

Outcome Planned Project 
2017-2018

Achievements
2017-2018

Progressive and 
representative Elected 
Member leadership

Organisational excellence

Sustainable community 
finances and assets 

Effective delivery of projects 
and services 

Effective community 
communication and 
engagement 

Engage external stakeholders 
to leverage local 
opportunities 

Council is a preferred 
employer

Continued renewal & 
replacement of infrastructure 
(refer major projects report 
for full details) including: -

o Replace external steps at 
Lucindale Town Hall

o Upgrade fittings & fixtures 
at the Naracoorte Town 
Hall

o Update stage curtains at 
the Naracoorte Town Hall 
(move old to Lucindale 
Town Hall)

o Improve entrance to 
Naracoorte Cemetery

o Design hangar area at 
Naracoorte Aerodrome

o Langkoop Road Cycle 
Lanes (road widening) 

o Sealed road construction 
o Footpath construction
o Intersections  
o Kerb & watertable 
o Unsealed road 

reconstruction 
o Reseals 
o Resheeting 
o Upgrade flooring in Market 

Square & Naracoorte CBD 
Public Conveniences

Continued renewal & 
replacement of infrastructure 
(refer major projects report 
for full details) including: -

o Upgrade fittings & 
fixtures at the Naracoorte 
Town Hall

o Improved entrance to 
Naracoorte Cemetery

o Design hangar area at 
Naracoorte Aerodrome

o Langkoop Road Cycle 
Lanes (road widening) 

o Road constructions;
o Bool Lagoon Road
o Mill Road
o Moyhall Road
o Schinckel Road
o Hakea St Lucindale
o Footpath construction
o Stewart Tce
o Smith Street
o Intersections  
o Kerb & watertable 
o Reseals 
o Resheeting 
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Some of these projects are subject 
to grant funding and may be 
delayed if grant applications are not 
successful

Continuation of “Bang the 
Table”, as an effective on-
line consultation & 
engagement tool 

Wellness Program to promote 
& encourage employees to 
maintain their health and 
fitness, including cultural 
change

Continued review of work 
practices & procedures to 
ensure a ‘best value’ 
approach to the delivery of 
projects and services to the 
community

Continued emphasis on the 
importance of maintaining 
a safe workplace and 
protecting the health and 
wellbeing of employees

23 community consultations / 
project information available 
on the Your Say website 

Visitor summary:

o 2,000 total visits
o 8 new registrations
o 14 engaged visitors
o 270 informed visitors
o 1,467 aware visitors 

Participation of staff in 
Wellness Programs continued 
to be promoted including:
o Healthy Lifestyle 

Program
o TAFE Wellness Training
o Hearing Tests 
o Mental Health Initiatives

Continued review of work 
practices & procedures to 
ensure a ‘best value’ 
approach to the delivery of 
projects and services to the 
community

The health and wellbeing of 
employees continues to be a 
priority, with additional 
emphasis on legislative 
compliance required in 2019
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PROJECT PRIORITIES FOR 2018-2019

THEME 1 – PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY

Facilitating and supporting sustainable growth to achieve economic
prosperity.

Outcome Planned Project 2018-2019

A sought after visitor 
destination

A vibrant and progressive 
business centre and townships

Diverse range of thriving 
primary industries

Economic Development Strategy 

NLBTA – contribution to TV Commercial promoting the district

Create street banners and produce local directional map 

Upgrade to the NRLE cattle selling pens (Stage 1)

Partner with Adelaide University to commence the ARC 
Linkage Project 

Caves Connection Project

Continue to facilitate the Red Meat Cluster Project (includes 
in-kind)

Encourage new ideas & ways of doing business by continuing 
the Innovation Fund (introduced in 2015-16)

Upgrade electricity supply at the Naracoorte Aerodrome to 
encourage the establishment of additional hangars and other 
infrastructure

Extend the taxiway at the Naracoorte Aerodrome to allow 
access from new hangars

Wayfinding Project (Stage 1) – signage in and around 
Naracoorte

Installation of an electric car charging site
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THEME 2 – HEALTHY LANDSCAPES
 

Working together to protect and enhance our natural environment for the 
future.

Outcome Planned Project 2018-2019

Contribute to sustainable land 
management practices

Water resources and 
ecosystems are protected and 
restored

Continued emphasis on waste management and the reduction 
of waste to landfill

Hard waste disposal (two free disposal days to be held)

Management of asbestos in Council owned buildings  

Bushfire Mitigation & Corella Management

Naracoorte Creek Erosion Control

Improved stormwater management on Bibury Avenue, 
Naracoorte Rail Lands & Schinckel Road

 

THEME 3 – HARMONY AND CULTURE
 

A safe, healthy and diverse community celebrating our similarities and 
differences

Outcome Planned Project 2018-2019

An inclusive community

A creative and artistic 
community

Learning community

A healthy and resilient 
community

Extension of hosting of the Regional Volunteer Management 
Program to 30 June 2021 (grant funded)

Purchase & installation of a new Christmas Tree for Naracoorte

Continued implementation of Community Art Program

Sponsorship and support provided to annual programs, 
community events, festivals and Community Facilities: -

Harmony Day

South East Field Days

Frances Folk Festival

TASTE the Limestone Coast
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Christmas in the Square, Lucindale Christmas Party & Special 
Kids Christmas Party (Adelaide)

Continued support of Naracoorte Art Gallery (including 
provision for maintenance)

Senior Super Bowls Series (new Event – 3-year commitment)

Events at the Library (one per month)

Support for community wellbeing

Develop a cycling & walking trail from Naracoorte to the Caves 
(subject to grant funding)

Extension of season at the Naracoorte Swimming Lake (open 
mid-November)

 

THEME 4 – LIVEABLE NEIGHBOURHOODS
 

A range of well-planned neighbourhoods and public space, designed with a 
strong sense of identity and place

Outcome Planned Project 2018-2019

A well planned district that 
meets the current and future 
needs of the community

A safe and integrated 
transport network 

Preserve the built heritage 
and character of the district

Contribution to the State Government Planning Portal 
(legislated contribution)

Memorial Parklands Natural Play Area (Stage 2)

Improved maintenance at Cockatoo Lake (slashing, new fire 
pits & improved signage)

Continuation of the Heritage Assistance Fund to assist with 
maintenance of sites listed on the ‘Local Heritage Register’

Develop a master plan for the Naracoorte CBD and Pioneer 
Park

Masterplans for Lucindale (refer resolution 204/18) and 
Frances

Installation of Storyboard Signs, introducing the heritage of 
the town (Stage 1)

Trails Project – installation of Signs purchased in 2017-18

Develop a master plan for the Naracoorte & District Sports 
Centre Precinct
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THEME 5 – PROGRESSIVE LEADERSHIP
 

A well led and managed district supported by a professional approach to 
managing infrastructure and the delivery of projects and services to the 
community.

Outcome Planned Project 2018-2019

Progressive and 
representative Elected 
Member leadership

Organisational excellence

Sustainable community 
finances and assets

Effective delivery of projects 
and services 

Effective community 
communication and 
engagement 

Engage external stakeholders 
to leverage local 
opportunities 

Council is a preferred 
employer

2018 Council election and effective induction of new 
Council

Continued renewal & replacement of infrastructure (refer 
budget and major projects report for full details) including: 

o Lucindale Town Hall – fire safety improvements

o Naracoorte Town Hall – paint auditorium & replace 
blinds/curtains

o Naracoorte Town Hall – replace retractable seating 
(notional costing)

o Naracoorte Cemetery – extend burial area

o Bridges & Culverts

o Sealed road construction 

o Footpath construction

o Intersections  

o Unsealed road reconstruction 

o Reseals 

o Resheeting 

Some of these projects are subject to grant funding and may be delayed if 
grant applications are not successful

Continuation of “Bang the Table”, as an effective on-line 
consultation & engagement tool 

Participation in the Australasian LG Performance Excellence 
Program, which will allow Council to benchmark its 
performance over a number of years and potentially against 
other similar Councils.
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COUNCIL REPORT
 
Representation Structure and Quota
 
The Council is the decision-making body on all matters of policy and strategic direction, 
and consists of the Mayor and 10 Councillors, who are all elected from the whole 
community. The Council also appoints a Deputy Mayor.

Naracoorte Lucindale’s total number of electors is 5,782. The quota for Naracoorte 
Lucindale Council is one member to 525 electors. Councils of a similar size and type 
have:

Council Electors Councillors Representation 
Quota

Clare and Gilbert Valleys 6,633 10 673

Coorong 3,790 9 421

Grant 5,499 10 549

Adelaide Plains 5,898 10 589

Mid Murray 6,417 10 641

Naracoorte Lucindale 5,782 11 525

Northern Areas 3,423 9 380

Renmark Paringa 6,417 9 713

Tatiara 4,528 10 452

Wakefield Regional 4,813 10 481

 

(The above information is provided by the Electoral Commission of SA (ECSA), current as at February 2018.)
 
Representation Review

Every 8 years, in accordance with Section 12 of the Local Government Act 1999, the 
Naracoorte Lucindale Council is required to review the composition of the council.

A review was commenced in October 2016 and in September 2017, the Electoral 
Commissioner advised Council that it had determined that Council’s Representation 
Review was conducted appropriately and complied with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act.

Following deliberation of all matters relevant to the review, including the public 
submissions received, Council decided to retain the structure implemented in 2000. That 
is the Naracoorte Lucindale Council will consist of:  
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a Mayor (the principal member) elected by the community
eleven Elected Members (including the Mayor) and
the current no ward structure is retained

The previous review was conducted during 2008 / 2009. The next representation review 
will commence during 2023 / 2024. Electors may make submissions on Council’s 
representation by writing to Council.  

Council Elections
 
Local Government elections are conducted every 4 years with the last election being 
held in November 2014. The next election will be held in October and November 2018.  
Council elections are controlled by the Electoral Commission SA and voting is not 
compulsory. The table below lists Naracoorte Lucindale Council’s voter participation at 
the past 4 elections.

Year Council area voter
participation

State average State Ranking

 
2014

 
43% 

 
32% 

 
34 

 
2010

 
59% 

 
33% 

 
11 

 
2006

 
58% 

 
31% 

 
4 

 
2003

 
53% 

 
33% 

 
13 

 
Decision making structure of council
 
Decisions of Council are made through Council meetings, Committee meetings or by staff 
through delegated authority. Informed decision making is critical to ensuring that 
decisions are made in the best interests of the wider community. During 2017- 2018,
Council’s formal decision making structure comprised of Council, Audit Committee, 
Development / Council Assessment Panel and Section 41 Committees.

All Council and Committee meetings are generally open to the public.  Documentation 
for each meeting (notice of meetings, agendas with reports, attachments and minutes) 
is available from Council’s offices and on the Naracoorte Lucindale Council website.
 
Council Meetings
 
As at 30 June 2018, Council had held a total of 12 General Council meetings and 9
Special Council meetings, totalling 21 meetings for the 2017-2018 financial year.
Attendances at meetings were:
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Councillors

Number of
meetings eligible

to attend

Number of
meetings 
attended

% of eligible
meetings
attended

 
 
Mayor Erika Vickery OAM

 
21 20 95%

 

Councillor Craig McGuire
 

21
 

18
 

86%
 

Councillor Malcolm McLean 21
 

21
 

100%
 

Councillor Trevor Rayner 21
 

21
 

100%
 

Councillor Toby Robinson 21
 

20
 

95%
 

Councillor Damien Ross 21
 

21
 

100%
 

Councillor Kenneth Schultz 21
 

17
 

81%
 

Councillor Tom Dennis 21
 

18
 

86%
 

Councillor Julie Earl 21
 

18
 

86%
 

Councillor Scott McLachlan 21
 

17
 

81%
 

Councillor Rebecca Smith 21
 

15
 

71%

 
Audit Committee
 
The Audit Committee is established in accordance with section 126 of the Local 
Government Act, 1999 and operates as an independent and objective advisory
committee to Council. It assists Council to accomplish its objectives by contributing to a 
systematic and disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of 
financial reporting, internal controls and risk management systems, whistle-blowing,
internal and external audits.

Council’s Audit Committee comprises five members, appointed by Council.  Three are 
Elected Members while the remainder are independent representatives with experience 
in financial, audit, legal and business related disciplines.  The appointment of
independent members to the Audit Committee provides additional assurance to Council 
and the community that risks are being appropriately managed.

Meetings of the Committee are generally open to the public and are held at the Council 
Chamber, DeGaris Place, Naracoorte at 4.30pm. The Committee meets at least three 
times a year at appropriate times in the reporting and audit cycle and otherwise as 
required.

During 2017-2018, the Audit Committee met 5 times. Meetings were held in August, 
December, February, April and June. Attendances at meetings were:
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Members Number of
meetings eligible

to attend

Number of
meetings 
attended

% of eligible
meetings 
attended

 
 
Mr Jim Ker
(Independent Member and
Presiding Member)

5 5 100%

Ms Robyn Mencel
(Independent Member)

5 4 80%

Councillor Damien Ross 5 5 100%

Councillor Rebecca Smith 5 3 60%

Councillor Tom Dennis 5 2 40%

Council Assessment Panel

Council has a Council Assessment Panel established in accordance with sections 82 and 
83 of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016. The Panel’s purpose is:

To make decisions on more complex developments (as defined in the Planning, 
Development and Infrastructure Act 2016) and on those matters which may be 
prescribed by regulations.

The Council Assessment Panel comprises up to 5 members appointed by the Council, 
comprising:

one Member of the Council and
up to 4 Independent Members (Independent Members), not being Members of the 
Council or State Parliament

The Council Assessment Panel meets as required. Generally, when a meeting is required 
it is held on the 2nd Thursday of the month. During 2017-2018, the Council Assessment 
Panel met in October and June. Attending the meetings were:
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43BMember 44BNumber of 
meetings eligible 

to attend

45BNumber of 
meetings 
attended

46B% of eligible 
meetings 
attended

 
Mr Frank Brennan
(Presiding Member and Independent 
Member)

2 2 100%

Mrs Liz Travers
(Independent Member)

2 2 100%

Ms Colleen Woodgate
(Independent Member)

1 1 100%

Councillor Ken Schultz 2 2 100%
 

Section 41 Committees

Under section 41 of the Local Government Act, 1999 (s41) Councils can create 
Committees to assist in the performance of its functions, to inquire into and report to 
Council on matters within the ambit of Council’s responsibilities, to provide advice to 
the Council, or to exercise delegated powers, functions or duties.

Each committee has its own terms of reference and meeting schedule as required. The 
membership of the committee is determined by Council and may consist of Elected 
Members and people from the broader community with special interests or skills.
Council appoints a presiding member for each committee.

Council has not delegated the power to make decisions or to undertake actions to these 
Committees. The Committees have been created to advise and make recommendations 
to the Council.
 
Section 41 Committees
 

CEO Recruitment, Performance Review & Remuneration
Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange
Strategic Asset Management
Strategic Planning and Development Policy (established in accordance with section 
101A of the Development Act 1993)
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CEO Recruitment, performance review & remuneration

The purpose of the CEO Committee is to perform the functions of a selection panel, to 
monitor the performance of Council’s Chief Executive Officer and to review the 
remuneration and conditions of employment of the CEO at 12 monthly intervals. The 
Committee consists of three Elected Members appointed by the Council. An 
independent member with relevant experience may be appointed by Council.

During 2017-2018, the CEO Committee met in November.  Attending the meeting were:
 

47BCouncillors 48BNumber of 
meetings eligible to 

attend

49BNumber of 
meetings attended

50B% of eligible 
meetings attended

 
 
Mayor Erika Vickery OAM 1 1 100%

 

Councillor Damien Ross
(Presiding Member)

1 1 100%

 

Councillor Tom Dennis 1 1 100%

Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange Board
 
The Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange Board’s purpose is to implement the 
Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange Strategic Management Plan 2012-22.

The Board oversees the development, construction and general operations, monitors 
financial performance, makes recommendations to Council regarding the 
implementation and any recommended revisions to the Naracoorte Regional Livestock 
Exchange Strategic Plan and develops an annual business plan.

The Board membership consists of two Elected Members and two Community 
Representatives with strong business acumen and a working knowledge of the livestock 
industry. The Naracoorte Lucindale Council CEO and Director Operations are non-voting 
members of the Board.

The NRLE Board met 6 times during the financial year.  Meetings were held in July,
October, December, February, April and June.
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Members Number of
meetings eligible

to attend

Number of
meetings 
attended

% of eligible
meetings 
attended

 
 
Mr Ian O’Loan
(Independent Member)

 
6

 
6 100%

Mr Jonathan England 
(Independent Member)

5 3 60%

Councillor Toby Robinson
(Presiding Member)

6 6 100%

 

Councillor Scott McLachlan
 

6
 

4
 

67%

Strategic Planning and Development Policy
 
The Strategic Planning and Development Policy committee is established in accordance 
with Section 101A of the Development Act 1993. The Committee provides advice to 
Council in relation to the extent to which Council’s strategic planning and development 
policies are in accordance with the Planning Strategy.

All Elected Members are members of the Committee.  The Committee met twice during 
the financial year in July and December. Attendances at meetings were:
 

Councillors Number of
meetings eligible

to attend

Number of
meetings 
attended

% of eligible
meetings
attended

 
Mayor Erika Vickery OAM 2 2 100%

Councillor Craig McGuire 2 1 50%

Councillor Malcolm McLean 2 1 50%

Councillor Trevor Rayner 2 1 50%

Councillor Toby Robinson 2 2 100%

Councillor Damien Ross 2 2 100%

Councillor Kenneth Schultz 2 1 50%

Councillor Tom Dennis 2 1 50%

Councillor Julie Earl 2 2 100%

Councillor Scott McLachlan 2 2 100%

Councillor Rebecca Smith 2 2 100%
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Strategic Asset Management
 
The Strategic Asset Management Committee was established by Council at its meeting 
held on 25 October 2017, having effect on and from 14 November 2017.

The Committee provides advice and recommendations to Council that align to outcomes 
listed under themes 4 and 5 of Council’s Strategic Plan as follows:
 

Theme 4 – Liveable Neighbourhoods, a range of well-planned neighbourhoods and 
public space, designed with a strong sense of identity and place.

o Outcome - A safe and integrated transport network
Theme 5 – Progressive Leadership, a well led and managed district supported by a 
professional approach to managing infrastructure, and the delivery of projects and 
services to the community.

o Outcome - Effective delivery of projects and services

All Elected Members are members of the Committee.  The Committee met four times 
during the financial year in November, February, April and June.  Attendances at 
meetings were:
 

Councillors Number of
meetings eligible

to attend

Number of
meetings 
attended

% of eligible
meetings
attended

 
Mayor Erika Vickery OAM 4 4 100%

Councillor Craig McGuire 4 3 75%

Councillor Malcolm McLean 4 4 100%

Councillor Trevor Rayner 4 4 100%

Councillor Toby Robinson 4 4 100%

Councillor Damien Ross 4 4 100%

Councillor Kenneth Schultz 4 4 100%

Councillor Tom Dennis 4 3 75%

Councillor Julie Earl 4 2 50%

Councillor Scott McLachlan 4 3 75%

Councillor Rebecca Smith 4 2 50%
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
 
As identified in theme 5 of the Strategic Plan 2013-2023, Progressive Leadership, Council 
wants to achieve effective community communication and engagement. Actions to 
achieve this include:
 

Engage with the community in Council decision making processes
Inform the community of Council’s progress in the delivery of strategic objectives
Ensure transparency in Council’s responsibilities and decision making

 
Listed below are some of the ways the community can be involved in decision-making
processes.
 
Council and Committee meetings

Members of the public have a number of opportunities to present their views on 
particular issues to Elected Members at a Council meeting:

Public Forum
 
Up to 15 minutes is scheduled at the commencement of each ordinary meeting for 
members of the public to address Council or the Committee to provide information 
relevant to the Council or the Committee.

Whenever possible a question raised by a member of the public will be answered 
immediately.

Petitions

Petition is one way in which members of the community may advise Council of their 
particular concerns regarding a specific issue or make requests of, and provide 
information to, Council.

A petition is a formally drawn up request to Council seeking action or special 
consideration of a particular matter, which is signed by more than two (2) 
residents/members of the public.

Petitions should be submitted by the close of business 7 days prior to the scheduled 
Meeting.

Section 10 – Petitions and Section 11 - Deputations of the Local Government (Procedures 
at Meetings) Regulations 2013 prescribes how a petition and deputation can be made.

Deputations or Presentations to Council

Whenever possible, requests for a deputation to address Council should be received in 
writing by the Chief Executive Officer no later than the close of business 7 days prior to 
the scheduled Meeting.
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If the deputation relates to a matter of business on the agenda, a person wishing to 
appear as a deputation at a meeting must deliver their written request to the principal 
office of the Council by 10.00am on the day of the meeting. Requests falling outside 
this guideline (ie: requests received later than specified above) will be accommodated 
whenever possible with the consent of the Mayor. Deputation requests must include 
sufficient information regarding the issue and indicate the preferred meeting that the 
individual/group wishes to be heard.

Whether or not a deputation may appear is determined on a case-by-case basis, meeting 
by meeting, and with regard to the particular matter upon which the person wish to 
address the meeting. In determining whether a deputation is allowed the following 
considerations will be taken into account:

the subject matter of the proposed deputation
whether it is within the powers of the Council
relevance to the Council or Council Committee agenda nominated – and if not,
relevance to the Council’s or Council Committee’s powers or purpose
the integrity of the request, and
the size and extent of the agenda for the particular meeting.

Where a deputation is to be heard, the person/s making the deputation may speak for 
no more than five minutes without leave of the meeting.

Written Requests

A member of the public can write to Council on any council policy, activity or service.
As a result, Council may invite the community member to provide further comment on 
points raised in the letter.

Elected Members

Members of the public can contact Elected Members of the Council to discuss items 
relevant to Council. Contact names and phone numbers are available from Naracoorte 
Lucindale Council offices or on Council’s website at www.naracoortelucindale.sa.gov.au.

Community Consultation

Council’s Public Consultation and Community Engagement policy sets out how Council 
will engage with the community in its decision making processes.  During 2017-2018
Council sought comment from the community on the following:

Dog and Cat Management Plan Public Consultation and Community 
Engagement Policy

Draft Infrastructure and Asset 
Management Plan

Lease Lucindale War Memorial Bowling 
Club

Annual Business Plan and Budget Order Making Policy
Frances Masterplan
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GRANTS RECEIVED
Each year Council applies to the State and Federal Government for funding to support its 
planned projects. These are competitive grant rounds and are tied to particular 
projects. Successful grant applications allow Council to maintain a high level of 
services, facilities and amenity across our district while ensuring sustainable finances.

Council receives an annual general purpose grant from the State Government Grants 
Commission. In 2017-2018, $3.377 million was received, including a supplementary road 
grant of $241,683. General purpose grants may be expended at Council’s discretion.
Specific purpose grant money expended during 2017-2018 is listed below. An (a) 
indicates that a portion of the grant income was received in 2017-2018, but unexpended 
as at 30 June 2018.
 

Volunteer Management Program $60,000

Library Maintenance Grant - Naracoorte $22,265

Library Maintenance Grant - Lucindale $514

Library Materials Grant - Naracoorte $22,267

Natural Play Area – Memorial Parklands $35,000

Fund My Neighbourhood – Rotary Park $41,998

Natural Disaster Resilience Program - Early Flood Warning Monitoring 
System in the Naracoorte Creek

$40,000

Roads to Recovery Grant – Moyhall Road, Schinckels Road & Black 
Range Road Resheet

$693,624

Inspiring SA Grant – Community Art & Science Event $10,000

Red Meat Cluster Project $77,734

Industrial Development - Lucindale Road Roundabout Project $340,500

Support Regional Aviation - Naracoorte Aerodrome – Extension of 
Apron Area

$62,500

Support Regional Aviation - Naracoorte Aerodrome Upgrade $61,854

Special Local Roads Program – Kingston Road(a) $375,000

State Bicycle Fund – Construction of Sealed Shoulders Langkoop Road $40,000

ELECTED MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

The Local Government Act 1999 (the Act) and the Local Government (Members 
Allowances and Benefits) Regulations 2010 (the Regulations) provides for the payment of 
Elected Member Allowances.
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An Elected Member is entitled to an annual allowance, which is determined every four
(4) years by the Remuneration Tribunal of South Australia. The Tribunal’s determination 
for the current Council term was on the 31 July 2014. Section 76(9) of the Local 
Government Act provides for the allowances to be adjusted by CPI on the first, second 
and third anniversary of the periodic elections.  Allowances effective from November 
2017 are:
 

Mayor $53,376

Deputy Mayor $16,680

Standing (Key) Committee Presiding Member $16,680

Elected Member $13,344

An additional allowance in the form of a sitting fee was introduced in July 2014 for a 
Councillor who is the presiding member of a Committee (other than the Principal or 
Deputy Principal Member, Chairperson or Deputy Chairperson or a Presiding Member of a 
prescribed committee).

Allowance - $157 per meeting limited to an aggregate amount of $939 per annum.
Travel time allowances for Members of Non-Metropolitan Councils have also been 
determined where the Member’s residence is located:

>30 kms <50kms from Council’s principal office $351 per annum

>50 kms < 100kms from Council’s principal office $584 per annum

>100 kms from Council’s principal office $1,168 per annum

 

Council is not required to adopt these allowances as they are based in legislation.
Council pays the cost of Elected Members attendance at training, seminars and 
conferences related to Council activities.  The following support is also provided to 
Elected Members to assist them in the performance of their official duties:

Mayor Elected Members

Fully maintained Council passenger 
sedan for travel related to official 
duties
Council owned and maintained 
computer
Council owned mobile phone
Reimbursement of expenses relating 
to functions attended
Reimbursement of telephone, 
facsimile or other communication
Device expenses (up to $150 per 
quarter for internet access)

Council owned and maintained iPad 
Reimbursement of expenses relating 
to functions attended
Reimbursement of approved childcare 
expenses while representing Council
Reimbursement of travel expenses
Reimbursement of telephone, 
facsimile or other communication 
device expenses (up to $150 per 
quarter for internet access)
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COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

Independent members of the Audit Committee, Council Assessment Panel and 
Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange Board receive a fee for attendance at approved 
meetings, training and events. The following fees were set by Council at its June 2017
meeting (resolution 303/17):
 

Presiding Member $275

Independent Members $220

ELECTED MEMBER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Local Government Act states that Council must ensure that its Elected Members 
undertake regular training in accordance with Council’s Elected Member Training and 
Development policy and that training complies with the Local Government Association
training standards. There are mandatory training requirements Elected Members must 
undertake following each Local Government election.

Training and development opportunities focus on assisting Elected Members in the 
performance and discharge of their functions and duties and contribute to achieving the 
strategic and good governance objectives of Council.  

Training and development activities undertaken by Elected Members during 2017-2018
are listed below. 
 
Councillors Activities undertaken

 

Mayor Erika Vickery OAM

 

2017 Local Government Conference and Annual
General Meeting

 2018 LGA Ordinary General Meeting and Showcase
 National General Assembly of Local Government
 

CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

Council and Council committees may from time to time discuss an item of business in 
confidence and as a result the public is excluded from attendance at the meeting for the 
period of time taken to discuss the relevant item. The Local Government Act 1999, 
Section 90(3) (a) to (n) sets out the criteria for when this may occur. Following is a 
summary of the number of occasions that the provisions listed in Section 90 (excluding 
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the public during debate) or Section 91 (documents to be kept confidential for a period 
of time) were used during 2017–2018.

During 2017-2018:

28 orders to move into confidence were made under section 90(2)
22 orders were made to retain reports, minutes and other documents in confidence 
under section 91(7)
1 order from 2016-2017 was released
1 order from 2015-2016 was released

Below is a summary of orders for 2017-2018:

Date Topic Grounds for 
Confidential 
Order -
Section 90(3)

Order expired, 
ceased or revoked

11-Jul-17 Nomination to Naracoorte Regional Livestock 
Exchange Board

a Released 17-Aug-17

25-Jul-17 CONFIDENTIAL – Contract 201617-14:  Provision 
of Cleaning Services

k Released 17-Aug-17

22-Aug-17 Tender 201718-02 - Stewart Terrace Footpath, 
Naracoorte

k Released 13-Oct-17

26-Sep-17 Naracoorte Tafe - 19 Gordon Street j Retained in 
confidence

24-Oct-17 Butler Terrace, Naracoorte - Construction b 25-Jul-18

14-Nov-17 CEO Recruitment, Performance Review and 
Remuneration Committee

d 25-Jul-18

28-Nov-17 Department Environment Water & Natural 
Resources - Notification of Surplus Land - Lot 5 
MacDonnell Street & 14 Rolland Street, 
Naracoorte

j 25-Jul-18

19-Dec-17 Naracoorte TAFE - 19 Gordon Street j Retained in 
confidence

19-Dec-17 Tender 201718-01: Upgrade Stormwater – McCoy 
Street, Naracoorte

k 25-Jul-18

19-Dec-17 Stewart Terrace and McDonnell Street 
Intersection, Naracoorte

k 25-Jul-18

22-Dec-17 Correspondence between the CEO, the 
Naracoorte Lucindale Council and its officers 
and Brett Julian Architect 

a Retained in 
confidence

23-Jan-18 Naracoorte TAFE - 19 Gordon Street j Retained in 
confidence

13-Feb-18 Memorial Oval, Naracoorte - Nature Play Area a Released 25-Jul-18

14-Feb-18 CEO Recruitment and Review Committee a Released 25-Jul-18
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27-Feb-18 Strategic Asset Management Committee - 13
February 2018

a Released 25-Jul-18

27-Feb-18 Tender 201718-10 Road Reconstruction:  Barclay 
Avenue, Naracoorte

K Released 25-Jul-18

24-Apr-18 Business Entrepreneurs / Innovation Fund a 25-Jul-18

24-Apr-18 Waste Collection Contracts and the Naracoorte 
Waste Transfer Station Operations

b Retained in 
confidence

24-Apr-18 Regional Growth Fund b Retained in 
confidence

26-Jun-18 Waste Collection Contracts and the Naracoorte 
Waste Transfer Station Operations 

k Retained in 
confidence

26-Jun-18 Memorial Oval, Naracoorte - Nature Play k Released 26-Jul-18
26-Jun-18 PP & SC Schinckel – Application to Purchase Land b Retained in 

confidence

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM AND STAFFING

The Executive Management Team is led by Chief Executive Officer, Dr Helen Macdonald.
 

Chief Executive Officer

Dr Helen Macdonald (until 2 February 2018)

Mr Trevor Smart (from 16 April 2018)

Director Operations Mr Steve Bourne

Director Corporate Services Ms Fiona Stringer

Manager Planning & Compliance Mr Paul McRostie

Manager Governance & Community 
Development

Ms Sally Klose

 
Salary packages for these Officers include over Award salary in a band of $98,983 -
$180,000, and may also include private use of a motor vehicle, packaged overtime 
allowance, superannuation, home phone, internet data transfer reimbursement and 
mobile phone or mobile phone reimbursement.
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Staff Levels (as at 30 June 2018)
 

2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014

Total employees 
(FTE) 68 69 69 70.9 73
Permanent full 
time 49 51 53 54 58
Permanent part 
time 16 14 13 14 15
Fixed term
contract – full 
time and part 
time 5 6 5 3 2

Casual 6 6 7 6 8

Naracoorte Lucindale Council follows equal opportunity employment principles across 
the organisation and the principles of anti-discrimination in all dealings with its 
employees. Selection to fill any vacancies is based on merit, including skills, 
experience, and aptitude for the position.

Appropriate work skills are vital to the effective and efficient delivery of services to the 
community. Council encourages employees to undertake relevant training to develop 
and enhance those skills.

Approximately 29% (2017: 28%, 2016: 33%) of the Naracoorte Lucindale Council’s 
operating revenue was expended on salaries, wages and associated employment costs.  
Of this expenditure $593,000 (2017: $545,000, 2016: $632,000) can be attributed to 
capital expenditure.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT
Naracoorte Lucindale Council is a member of the Local Government Mutual Liability 
Scheme, which provides Local Government with insurance services at lower premiums 
than market rates. The Scheme rewards good performance through premium rebates. A
comprehensive audit of risk management policies, practices and procedures is 
undertaken annually to assess the performance of each Council.

Naracoorte Lucindale Council is committed to a high standard of governance and 
accountability.  Council manages its strategic, operational and financial risks at an 
organisation level in accordance with the AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009. This framework 
ensures that risks and internal controls are identified, assessed and managed and 
reported against whilst ensuring that effective policies, operating guidelines and actions 
are in place.

In 2012, an Organisation Risk Register was developed profiling Council’s corporate and 
operational risks. This register has been reviewed and further refined during 2017-2018.
Risks identified through this process are managed and mitigated through inclusion in 
annual work area plans and other programs.
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Dean Newbery & Partners Chartered Accountant have been appointed by Council as the 
Council’s External Auditors for a five (5) year contract, expiring at the completion of the 
2019-2020 financial audit.  This appointment is in accordance with section 128 of the 
Local Government Act. The External Auditors 

complete the annual statutory audit by testing the underlying transactions that form 
the basis of the financial statements. 
provide an opinion on whether the accounts are a true and fair view. 

The External Auditors findings are reported to the Audit Committee and Council at the 
completion of the Audit each year. The Audit Committee meets with Council’s Auditor 
on an annual basis to discuss internal controls, risk management and to seek clarification 
on financial matters.
 

DELEGATIONS TO THE CEO
 
The Council has provided the chief executive officer with the delegated authority to 
make decisions on a number of specified administrative and policy matters. A copy of 
the Delegations Policy is available on the website, www.naracoortelucindale.sa.gov.au.
Council reviews these delegations annually. In keeping with legislative requirements 
Council:

Determines the policies to be applied by the Council in exercising its discretionary 
powers.
Determines the type, range and scope of projects to be undertaken by the Council.
Determines the resources, which are to be made available to undertake such works 
and services.

ETHICAL STANDARDS AND PERFORMANCE
 
A mandatory Code of Conduct applies to all Elected Members of Council in South 
Australia.

Any person can make a complaint to Council about a possible breach by an Elected 
Member under the Behavioural Code (Part 2 of the Code of Conduct). Complaints about 
behaviour alleged to have breached the Behavioural Code should be brought to the 
attention of the Mayor or Chief Executive Officer.

Any person may report an alleged breach under the Part 3 of the code, Misconduct to 
the Council, the Ombudsman, the Electoral Commissioner (for alleged breaches of Code 
3.8) or the Office for Public Integrity. Alleged breaches of this Part made to a Council 
or to the Office for Public Integrity may be referred to the Ombudsman for investigation 
under Section 263 of the Local Government Act 1999, by the Council’s Chief Executive 
Officer or by the Independent Commissioner Against Corruption, where he or she so 
determines.
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A mandatory Code of Conduct applies to all Council employees in South Australia.  Any 
person may make a complaint about a Council employee under this Code.  Complaints 
about an employee’s behaviour that is alleged to have breached this Code should be 
brought to the attention of the Chief Executive Officer of the Council.  Complaints about 
a Chief Executive Officer’s behaviour that is alleged to have breached the Code should 
be brought to the attention of the Mayor.

REGISTERS
Following is a list of registers required to be kept by Council:

Section 68 Members Register of Interests
Section 79 Members Register of Allowances and Benefits
Section 105 Officers Register of Salaries
Section 116 Officers Register of Interests
Section 188 Fees and Charges
Section 207 Community Land
Section 231 Public Roads 
Section 252 By-Laws

The following registers are also kept by Council:

Register of Interests (Council Assessment Panel Members)
Register of Elected Members Disclosure of Conflict of Interests
Election Campaign Donation Returns
Register of Land management agreements
Register of dogs
Register of Prohibition Order
Confidential Items
Development
Heritage
Gifts and Benefits
Resolutions

CODES
Following is a list of Codes of Conduct or Practice, required under the Local Government 
Act 1999 or the Local Government (Elections) Act 1999:

Section 63 - Members Code of Conduct
Section 92 - Code of Practice for Access to Council and Committee Meetings and 
Associated Documents 
Section 110 - Employees Code of Conduct
Reg 6 - Code of Practice Meetings of Council and Council Committees 
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POLICIES
Council has adopted the following policies:

Accommodation and Associated Expenses
Accounting Policy - Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Australian Defence Force - Reservist Leave
Budget Reporting and Amendment Policy
Building and Swimming Pool Inspection
CFS Support
Caretaker Guidelines
Caretaker 
Cemetery Leases
Civic Events and Functions 
Access to Council and Committee Meetings and Associated Documents
Council and Committees Meeting Code of Practice
Customer Service & Complaint Handling 
Complaints & Dispute Resolution Procedure - Sewerage Services
Customer Charter - Sewerage Services
Delegations Policy
Donations and Sponsorships
Drug and Alcohol Policy
Drug and Alcohol Procedure
Driveway Policy
Enforcement Policy
Elected Members Allowances and Benefits
Elected Members Casual Vacancy
Elected Members Complaint Handling Procedure
Elected Members Training and Development
Employee Assistance Program
Employee - Recognition of Service, Personal Events and Occasions
Employee  - Corporate Uniform and Protective Clothing & Equipment
Employee Pre-placement Medical Examination
Fingerboard Signs
Footpaths
Firearms
Footpath Dining
Fraud, Corruption and Whistle-blower Policy
Fraud, Corruption Prevention and Whistle-blower Procedure
Flag Flying
Grievance / Review of Decision Policy
Informal Gatherings
Hardship Policy for Residential Customers of Minor and Intermediate Water Retailers
Use of Council Equipment by Community and Sporting Organisations 
Internal Controls
Investments Policy
Livestock Exchange OHSW Policy
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External Communications 
Motor Vehicles
Online Purchasing Terms and Conditions
Order Making
Procurement
Council Land - Permit to Use
Prudential Management
Public Consultation
Quarry Activities
Rate Rebates
Register of Interests 
Risk Management
Road and Place Naming
Road Network Extension and Upgrade
Child Safe Environment (and other vulnerable people)
Sale or Disposal of Land and Other Assets
Smoke Free Policy
Shipping Container
Technology and Communication
Venue Hire
Tree Management Policy
Volunteer
Kerbside Waste Collection
Re-employment of Work Injured Former Employee
Return to Work from a Work Injury & Provision of Suitable Employment

 

REVIEW OF DECISIONS
As required by the Local Government Act 1999, Council has a Grievance / Review of 
Decisions policy, outlining how decisions of Council or other people acting on behalf of 
Council are reviewed.

There was one application for review of decision during 2017- 2018 that related to 
rumble strips placed in Grieve Avenue adjacent Alexander Avenue and towards the 
Aitchison Avenue end of Grieve Avenue in Naracoorte.  The decision was reviewed at
Council’s meeting held on 24 October 2017 and the original decision was upheld.  

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION APPLICATIONS AND 
STATEMENT
 
The Freedom of Information Statement is published annually by the Naracoorte 
Lucindale Council in accordance with the requirements of the Freedom of Information 
Act 1991. There were two Freedom of Information applications received during 2017-
2018.
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There were no applications brought forward from the previous year and there were no 
unfinished applications at 30 June 2018. Inquiries or requests for information under the 
Act should be forwarded to:

Freedom of Information Officer 
Naracoorte Lucindale Council 
PO Box 555, NARACOORTE SA 5271

The Freedom of Information Statement is available on Council’s website,
www.naracoortelucindale.sa.gov.au
 

MANAGEMENT PLANS FOR COMMUNITY LAND
 
Council has management plans in place for all community land under its care.
 

LOCAL NUISANCE AND LITTER CONTROL ACT 2017
Section 8 of the Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act requires councils to include 
information in its annual report on the functions conferred on councils under this Act. 

Council received 6 complaints of local nuisance or littering
There were no offences under the Act that were expiated
There were no offences under the Act that were prosecuted
There were 4 nuisance abatement notices or litter abatement notices issued
There were no civil penalties negotiated under section 34 of the Act
There were no applications by the council to the Court for orders for civil penalties 
under section 34 of the Act and therefore there were no orders made by the Court on 
those applications
No other functions were performed by the council under the Act

ACCOUNTABILITY
 
Provision of Services and the Purchase of Goods
 
Naracoorte Lucindale Council is committed to ensuring a fair, transparent and 
accountable process in the provision of services and the purchase of goods and services 
to enable it to meet its operational and community obligations.

Naracoorte Lucindale Council aims to ensure that its methods of service provision, 
including the carrying out of works and purchasing goods are transparent, cost-
effective, and represent best value for money while meeting the needs of Council and 
the community. At the same time, Council is committed to pursuing a convention of 
purchasing locally whenever possible and practical.

More detailed information is available in the Procurement Policy.
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National Competition Policy – Clause 7 Statement Reporting
 
Local Government is required to comply with the Competition Policy Reform (South 
Australia) Act, 1996 to ensure the application of competitive neutrality principles and 
practices when significant “business activities” are being carried out by Councils.
Whether an activity is a significant business activity to which competitive neutrality 
principles should be applied is a matter for each local government agency to determine.
This determination should be made taking into account:
 

the intent of National Competition Policy
whether the business activity possesses sufficient market power to create a 
competitive impact in the market that is more than nominal or trivial
whether the size of the business activity relative to the size of the market as a whole 
is more than nominal or trivial

 
The National Competition Policy categorises significant business activities as:
 

Category 1 - business activities with an annual revenue in excess of $2 million, or 
employing assets in excess of $20 million
Category 2 - all other significant business activities.

 
Competitive Neutrality Principles under National Competition Policy require that 
Councils must report annually on:
 

the determination of significant business activities undertaken by Council, and the 
creation or cessation of significant business activities
the application, or change in application, of competitive neutrality
the review and reform of by-laws, including by-laws created or repealed
complaints about the application of competitive neutrality and
the structural reform of public monopolies

 
Significant Business Activities
 

Category 1:
o Council has determined it has no significant business activities to declare 

under Category 1.
 

Category 2:
o the Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange is a business activity falling

within Category 2. Council has adopted the Cost Reflective Pricing principle
to counter any unfair competitive advantage that might exist. This includes
the recovery by Council of administration, loan servicing charges, and other
similar business costs associated with the management and operation of the 
Livestock Exchange.
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Commencement or Cessation of Significant Business Activities
 
Council has neither commenced nor ceased a significant business activity during the 
course of the reporting period.

By-Laws

Council conducted a review of its by-laws during 2016–2017. At its meeting held in June 
2017 having had regard to the National Competition Policy Report Council made and 
passed the following by-laws: 

Permits and Penalties By-law No. 1 of 2017
Local Government Land By-law No. 2 of 2017
Roads By-law No. 3 of 2017
Moveable Signs By-law No. 4 of 2017 and
Dogs By-law No. 5 of 2017

The by-laws commenced operation on 11 November 2017.
 
Complaints Concerning the Application of Competitive Neutrality

Council did not receive any complaints concerning the application of competitive 
neutrality principles during the 2017-2018 financial year.

Structural Reform of Public Monopolies
 
These provisions do not apply to any Council activity.

LIMESTONE COAST LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ASSOCIATION
Section 43 of the Local Government Act allows two or more councils to establish a 
Regional Subsidiary to provide specified services or to carry out a specified activity or 
activities.

The seven (7) Limestone Coast Councils have joined together to develop a regional 
subsidiary known as the Limestone Coast Local Government Association (LCLGA). The 
following Councils are Members of LCLGA:  City of Mount Gambier, District Councils of 
Grant, Robe, Tatiara and Kingston and Naracoorte Lucindale and Wattle Range Councils.

LCLGA’s overall goal is to represent and serve its Constituent Councils and to advance 
the Limestone Coast communities through effective advocacy, facilitation and 
innovation. LCLGA’s Annual Report and audited financial statements for the 2017-18
financial year have been prepared in accordance with Schedule 2 (28) of the Local 
Government Act 1999 and are attached to this report.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Council’s long-term financial sustainability is dependent on ensuring that, on average, 
over time its expenditure is equal to or less than its revenue.
 
Revenue
 
Council’s primary source of revenue is generated by the levying of general rates and 
service charges. The 2017-2018 year included a budgeted increase in general rates of 
approximately 1.3% (2017: 1.0%, 2016: 2.0%). Other sources of revenue for Council 
included user charges (hall hire and Naracoorte Regional Livestock Exchange fees), 
statutory fees (animal registration, development and health fees), reimbursements 
(private work), investment income, grant income and other income (rebates and 
insurance recoupments).
 
 2017-2018 2016-2017

 
51BRates

General Rate Revenue 
Fines, Interest & Legal Fees
Less Rebates (mandatory, discretionary &

revaluations)

$10.389 million
$  0.089 million
$  0.181 million

52B$10.297 million

     $10.260 million
       $0.071 million
       $0.137 million

$10.194 million

54BService Charges
Waste & Recycling
Community Waste Management
Scheme NRM Levy (collected on behalf of
the NRM Board)

    $1.013 million
    $0.094 million
    $0.648 million

$1.755 million

   $0.925 million
   $0.091 million
   $0.618 million
$1.634 million

57BStatutory Charges $0.206 million    $0.167 million

58BUser Charges    $1.701 million    $1.719 million

59BInvestment Income    $0.172 million    $0.122 million

60BReimbursements & Other Income    $0.413 million    $0.919 million

61BGrant, Subsidies & Contributions
For New or Upgraded
Assets Other Grants

$0.656 million
$4.604 million
$5.260 million

$1.368 million
$5.302 million

$6.670 million

TOTAL REVENUE
(excluding income from sale of assets)

$19.804 million $21.425 million

 

Council’s grant income for 2016 – 2017 is exaggerated due to the early receipt of
50% of the 2017 – 2018 Grants Commission payment in June 2017 ($1.424 million).
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Assets and Capital Expenditure

Land, buildings and specified infrastructure (including Naracoorte Regional Livestock 
Exchange, Naracoorte Aerodrome, Naracoorte Transfer Station and the Naracoorte 
Swimming Lake) were revalued as at 30 June 2015 by AssetVal Pty Ltd. Road and 
Stormwater infrastructure was revalued by Council staff as at 1 July 2016. CWMS 
infrastructure was revalued by AssetVal Pty Ltd as at 1 July 2017. Plant and machinery, 
furniture & equipment, reserve furniture, minor equipment and library books continued 
to be valued at cost.

 2017-2018 2016-2017
 

Capital Expenditure
Renewal or Replacement of Existing Assets
New Assets

 

$5.836 million
$1.735 million
$7.571 million

$ 7.037 million
$ 2.473 million
$ 9.510 million

Work in Progress
(capital projects in progress, which will be 
completed and capitalised year ending 30
June)

$1.061 million $1.116 million

Asset
Values

Asset Values
Carrying Value (written down value)

$311.628 million
$174.440 million

$308.146 million
$175.653 million

Further details relating to completed capital projects and related expenditure may be 
found elsewhere in this document.
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Expenditure

Council’s operating expenditure for 2017-18 was $18.469 million (2017: $18.811 million). 
The table below excludes expenditure in relation to capital projects, except in relation
to employee costs which are provided for informational purposes only.

Expenditure referenced as ‘capital projects’ is also included in the amounts shown 
above for capital expenditure.  Employee costs include wages, workers’ compensation, 
superannuation, income protection and leave accruals.

$659,148 (2017: $657,000) was passed on to the Natural Resource Management Board. 
 
 2017-2018 2016-2018

 
Employee Costs
Operating Expenditure 
Capital Projects

 

$5.046 million
$0.593 million
$5.639 million

$4.977 million
$0.545 million
$5.522 million

Materials, Contracts & Other $6.218 million $6.360 million

Depreciation $7.035 million $7.281 million

Finance Costs $0.170 million $0.193 million

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURE
(excluding capital projects)

$18.469 million $18.811 million
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Other Information
 
 2017-2018 2016-2017
 
Cash & Deposits $8.682 million $7.544 million

Trade & Other Receivables
(excludes loans to community groups)

$1.017 million $2.055 million

Inventories $0.583 million $0.746 million

Loans to Community Organisations $0.381 million $0.433 million

Loan Liability $2.636 million $3.009 million

Employee Leave Provisions $1.274 million $1.219 million

Landfill Provisions
(reinstatement & monitoring of landfill sites)

$0.009 million $0.021 million

 

Net Result

Council’s operating result before capital revenues for year ending 30 June 2018 is a 
surplus of $0.679 million (2017: surplus of $1.246 million). Council’s 2017 result is
exaggerated due to the early receipt of 50% of the 2017 – 2018 Grants Commission 
payment in June 2017 ($1.424 million). The Audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended 30 June 2018 are attached to this report.
 
Auditor

The Local Government Act 1999 requires Council to report on a range of matters relating 
to the services provided by its Auditor, including the amount of remuneration paid for 
audit and other services.

The Adelaide firm Dean Newbery & Partners Chartered Accountants has been engaged to 
undertake statutory audit duties in relation to Council’s financial and operational 
activities since the year ending 30 June 2011.

During 2017 - 2018, a payment of $24,000 (GST exclusive) was made to Newbery’s for 
audit services provided in relation to the financial year ending 30 June 2018. No 
payments were made for any other services.
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Budget 2018 - 2019
 
For the year ending 30 June 2019, Council has adopted the following Operating Budget.
 

ACTUALS 
YEAR ENDED
30.06.2018

($’000)

BUDGET 
YEAR ENDED
30.06.2019

($’000)

OPERATING REVENUES  

Rates 12,052 12,263
Statutory Charges      206 184
User Charges 1,701 1,851
Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 4,604 3,731
Investment Income      172 116
Reimbursements      156 172
Other Income      257 128

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 19,148 18,445
 
 

OPERATING EXPENSES  

Employee Costs 5,046 5,383
Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses 6,218 6,121
Finance Costs 170       152
Depreciation 7,035 6,721

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 18,469 18,378
 

64BOPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)
BEFORE CAPITAL REVENUES 679 68

65BAsset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments (2,171) -

66BAmounts Received Specifically for New or 
Upgraded Assets

656 1,114

67BNET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (836) 1,181
 

 
 
Further information in relation to projects proposed for the 2018 - 2019 financial year 
may be sourced from Council’s Annual Business Plan & Budget 2018 - 2019.
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MEASURING COUNCIL’S PERFORMANCE
In addition to documenting Council strategic objectives, activities and planned programs 
for the 2017 -2018 financial year, the Annual Business Plan & Budget and the Strategic 
Management Plan form the framework against which Council monitors its performance
during the year.

Performance can be measured in many ways and in many fields of Council’s operations. 
Financial performance is obviously of significant interest to all ratepayers, as the 
achievement or otherwise of financial targets can have a direct monetary impact on all 
of them.

The measurement of Council’s actual performance is critical to the successful 
implementation of the Strategic Plan and Annual Business Plan.  In conjunction with that 
performance measurement, Performance Indicators can be used to highlight a number of 
key issues that are fundamental to the long-term sustainability of the Council and the 
wellbeing of the community.

Performance Indicators can include measurements of the effectiveness and efficiency of 
internal systems and processes as well as the more traditional financial outcomes.

Financial Indicators are calculated in accordance with Information Paper 9 - Local 
Government Financial Indicators prepared as part of the LGA Financial Sustainability 
Program for the Local Government Association of South Australia.

The targets identified below have been adopted by Council following recommendation 
by Council’s Audit Committee.
 
Indicator 1: Operating Surplus
The difference between day to day income and expenses for the period

Target
To achieve an operating breakeven position, or better, over any five-year period.

Target 2015-16
Actual
($’000)

2016-17
Actual
($’000)

2017-18
Actual
($’000)

 
=>0

 
737

 
1,246

 
679

Indicator 2: Operating Surplus Ratio
The percentage by which the major controllable income source varies from day to day 
expenses.
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Target
To achieve an operating surplus ratio of between 0% and 15% over any five-year period.

Target 2015-16 Actual 2016-17 Actual 2017-18 Actual

 
0-15%

 
4.4%

 
6.2%

 
3.5%

Indicator 3: Net Financial Liabilities
Money owed to others less money held, invested or owed to Council

Target
Council’s level of net financial liabilities is no greater than its annual operating revenue 
and not less than zero.
 
Target 2015-16 Actual

($’000)
2016-17 Actual

($’000)
2017-18 Actual

($’000)

 
>0 < $19,148

 
(848)

 
(3,279

 
(4,429)

This result indicates that Council has more assets than liabilities. Council is in a position 
where it could increase its borrowings to ensure assets are renewed at a sustainable 
level.

Indicator 4: Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
The significance of the net amount owed compared with income received

Target
Net financial liabilities ratio is greater than zero but less than 100% of total operating
revenue.

Target 2015-16 Actual 2016-17 Actual 2017-18 Actual

 
>0 < 100%

 
(5%)

 
(16%)

 
(23%)

 
Indicator 5: Interest Cover Ratio
The level of income used to pay interest on loans

Target
Net interest is greater than 0% and less than 10% of operating revenue.

Target 2015-16 Actual 2016-17 Actual 2017-18 Actual

 
>0 < 10%

 
0.1%

 
0.4%

 
(0.01)%

This result indicates that Council’s net interest (interest paid less interest received) as a 
percentage of operating income is very low and is a further indication that Council is in 
a good position to increase its borrowings.
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Indicator 6: Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expenditure on the renewal 
and replacement of existing assets, and excludes new capital expenditure on the 
acquisition of additional assets.

For 2017-18 the asset renewal funding ratio is calculated on the sum of the 
proposed expenditure as indicated in the Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan 
plus annual depreciation for those classes currently excluded from the Plan.  
Excluded classes: furniture & fittings; site improvements, plant & equipment and 
library books.

Target
Capital outlays on renewing/replacing assets net of proceeds from sale of replaced
assets is greater than 90% but less than 110% of depreciation over a rolling 3-year
period.

Target 2015-16 Actual 2016-17 Actual 2017-18 Actual

 
>90 < 110%

 
             141%

 
92%

 
            67%

Council is meeting its target in renewing/replacing assets, with an average ratio over 
three (3) years of 100%.

AUDITED FINANCIALS

Understanding the Financial Statements

The Financial Statements are an essential report of the Naracoorte Lucindale Council. 
They show how Council performed financially during the year and reveal Council’s 
overall financial position as at 30 June.

Council presents its financial report in accordance with all applicable Australian 
Accounting Standards as it is required to do. Council is a ‘not for profit’ organisation 
and some of the generally recognised terms used in private sector company reports are 
not appropriate for Council reports.

Council’s Financial Report was prepared by Council’s Administration and audited by 
Dean Newbery & Partners Chartered Accountants.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

This report discloses Council’s revenues broken down into a range of prescribed 
categories. It also identifies expenses incurred in the running of Council during the 
year. These revenues and costs relate solely to the day-to-day running of the Council 
and its various facilities and do not include the purchase of assets or reconstruction / 
renewal of infrastructure. The difference between revenue and expenditure is Council’s 
operating surplus for the year.
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Statement of Financial Position

This report is similar to a Balance Sheet for a private company. It identifies what 
Council owns as Assets and what it owes as Liabilities.

The Assets and Liabilities are divided into current and non-current. Current means 
those assets or liabilities which will fall due in the next 12 months. The components of 
the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Current Assets
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – includes all amounts readily convertible to cash, with an 
insignificant risk of change in value.
Trade and Other Receivables – are amounts owed to Council by ratepayers and other 
persons and organisations.
Inventories – includes the stores and consumable items stocked at the Council’s 
Works Depots, quarry materials and stationery.

 
Non-Current Assets
 

Financial Assets – are the funds invested on behalf of the Council.
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment – are the largest component of Council’s 
wealth and represent the value of all land, buildings, roads, vehicles, equipment etc 
which have been constructed or accumulated by Council. Roads comprise the 
majority value of these assets.
Other Non-Current Assets – includes all loans owed to Council from Community 
Groups, and amounts that have been prepaid.

 
Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables – includes amounts owing for goods and services, accrued 
employee liabilities, amounts received in advance and other deposits.
Borrowings – comprise loan repayments falling due in the next 12 months.
Provisions – comprise employee leave (annual & long service) entitlements and 
Council’s liability associated with the closure of its landfill site.

 
Non-Current Liabilities
 

Borrowings – comprise loan repayments that do not fall due in the next 12 months.
Provisions – comprise employee leave (annual & long service) entitlements and 
Council’s liability associated with the closure of its landfill site that do not fall due in 
the next 12 months.

Statement of Changes to Equity
 
This Statement demonstrates how the changes in Total Ratepayers’ Equity arose during 
the year. The main factors associated with the change in equity are:
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The profit or losses from operations;
The use of monies from Council’s reserves;
Revaluation of assets. Each asset class is revalued as per Council policy, unless it has 
been determined by Council policy to be valued on a cost basis.

 
Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement summarises Council’s cash payments and cash receipts for the 
year. The Statement is presented according to a specific Accounting Standard and needs 
some care in analysis.  The values may differ from those shown in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, as the latter is prepared on an accrual accounting basis. Cash is 
used in the following main areas:

Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Financing Activities

The result demonstrates whether the Council’s “cash position” increased or decreased 
as a result of the year’s activities.

Notes to the Accounts
 
The Notes are a very important component of the Financial Statements.  They provide a 
range of detail behind many of the summary figures contained in the statements. The 
note numbers are shown beside the relevant items in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Financial Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows.

Most of the Notes are self-explanatory and contain the following:

A breakdown of expenses, reserves, revenues and other assets
Commitments of expenditure
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When writing this year’s annual report, I found myself asking, 

“Why do we do what we do – and what are we trying to 

achieve?”

In its most basic form, our team delivers programs and 

projects that are best delivered under a collaborative model 

for the benefit of our community.  Our region has long 

recognised the value in partnerships, the value in combining 

resources and we also have the capacity to set aside lines 

on a map to deliver for our communities of interest.  

We are not unique in that we have a team of project 

managers that specialise in achieving outcomes related to 

an agreed set of core themes.  In our case these include; 

Infrastructure, Sustainable Economy, Environmental 

Sustainability and Community and Social Wellbeing.  What 

sets us apart from many is our commitment to the ethos – 

strength in numbers.  Whilst this saying is often used as a 

simple catch phrase, our region has demonstrated success 

for many years by having it as a core belief.

What we do, and we do it extremely well, is broker 

partnerships and develop relationships that can be 

leveraged that provides a point of difference to many other 

regional communities not only in South Australia but across 

Australia.  I firmly believe that the LCLGA is a leader in 

regional collaboration and linking projects together.  We 

have a long history of success and when we sit down in 

the not- too-distant future to draft our new Strategic Plan, 

the success of the past has laid the foundations for a 

prosperous future.  

Just in this past year alone we leveraged the council LCLGA 

contribution of $535,000 to attract a further $800,000 in 

project funding that has been used to deliver a range 

of outcomes including; Road Safety, Tourism, Adapting 

to a Changing Climate, StarClub, Waste Education and 

Awareness and Strategic Planning, the regional Sports 

Academy and coastal mapping to name a few.  Add to 

this the $1.94m allocated to the region via the Special 

Local Roads Program and we can see the value of our 

organisation.

One key project that we have delivered in this past year 

is the Limestone Coast Regional Growth Strategy and 

supporting Action Plan.  This work was carried out by 

the highly respected Regional Australia Institute (RAI) 

and was the first project the RAI carried out in South 

Australia.  Consultation was conducted with a range of 

business leaders and government and non-government 

agencies including the health and education sectors.  Work 

on prioritising the Action Plan will continue into the new 

financial year with the opportunity to grow the regional 

economy by 20 percent or $700m by 2026 being identified.  

This is not insignificant and will take a collaborative 

approach to realise its full potential.  Many of the identified 

Actions will be considered for inclusion in future business 

plans and other partners will also be key to its delivery. 

As an outcome of the Growth Strategy, Regional 

Development Australia Limestone Coast have taken the 

lead to complete a Regional Infrastructure Audit.  It is 

widely recognised that infrastructure is a key link in the 

drive to grow economies, increase jobs and enhance 

quality of life.  Modern and relevant infrastructure is critical 

to the economic viability of the region.  Ensuring there 

is investment in infrastructure that supports and allows 

growth of the economy is vital. The LCLGA will continue to 

contribute to this project and with our financial contribution 

and representation on the steering committee we will 

continue to advocate for the inclusion of vital projects to be 

included in the final Plan.   

Value does not only lie inside the organisation with our 

Board assessing the benefits of and supporting several 

external projects in this past year.  These projects look to 

grow the regions’ economy and have included; the Red 

Meat Cluster who are doing a tremendous amount of work 

in the red meat sector and who have identified key projects 

that can be undertaken to grow this important sector.  We 

have partnered with the Limestone Coast Grape and Wine 

Council with our staff being involved in the success of the 

$175,000 grant via the Turnbull Governments International 

Wine Tourism Competitive Grants program with the Mixed 

During this past year the Limestone Coast Local Government Association has continued its 

excellent work to deliver a range of outcomes for the region. Through our structure which 

includes our member councils, the elected Board, the various internal committees and our 

representation on a range of external committees we have continued to remain focused on 

those issues and outcomes that our region values the most.
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Dozen Interactive Wine Trails project.  This project will 

assist in the targeting of China and the USA and will feature 

a central consumer tool or website that promotes tailored 

experiences designed to increase length of stay and 

maximise tourism expenditure.  This piece of work dovetails 

nicely into the already adopted LCLGA Regional Tourism 

Strategic Plans.  We have taken carriage of the development 

of the Limestone Coast Leadership Program and were 

successful with our submission in the last round of the 

Building Better Regions Fund and will work towards having 

the first intake of participants commence the program in the 

new financial year.  Developing future leaders has long been 

identified as a key project for the region.

To support our efforts in the area of lobbying and advocacy 

I continue to prosecute the regions concerns in my capacity 

as a Board member and country Vice-president with the 

Local Government Association of South Australia and in 

the position of President of the South Australian Regional 

Organisation of Councils.  

Our advocacy efforts have continued to be guided by our 

members’ and has included; removal of the rubble royalty, 

Inquiry into Regional Development and Decentralisation, 

continued funding of the Substance Misuse Limestone 

Coast program, Rural and Regional Affairs and Transport 

Inquiry into the operation of regional airports, regional 

training and development, the need for a regional focus for 

TAFE, community legal centres, establishment of a coastal 

council alliance, Rating Equity and the establishment of 

Joint Planning Boards.                

We acknowledge the tremendous efforts of Federal Member 

of Parliament Mr Tony Pasin MP and State Members Mr Troy 

Bell MP and Mr Mitch Williams MP (until March 2017) & Nick 

McBride MP (March 2017). Their assistance and support are 

not only valued but greatly appreciated.

We would like to extend a special thank you to those 

agencies that have partnered with us over the past twelve 

months.  Without your valuable contribution, time and efforts 

many of our projects would not go ahead.  South Australian 

Tourism Commission, Office for Recreation and Sport, RDA 

Limestone Coast, PIRSA, Natural Resources South East, 

Local Government Association of South Australia, Motor 

Accident Commission, the University of South Australia 

and the Australian Federal Government and finally our 

member Councils – your continued support is very much 

appreciated.     

On behalf of the Board I would like to acknowledge the 

efforts of our dedicated staff over the past 12 months: 

Dominic Testoni, Michaela Bell, Tony Elletson, Biddie 

Shearing, Rob Forgan, June Saruwaka, Prae Wongthong & 

Mae Steele.

The Annual Report includes a detailed overview of the 

entire operations and what has been achieved on your 

behalf.  I commend this years’ report to you and would like 

to acknowledge the continued support of the constituent 

council Mayors, elected members and Chief Executive 

Officers.

Mayor Erika Vickery 

President LC LGA
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LCLGA was established as a regional body on 6th October 1885. LCLGA is a regional subsidiary representing its Constituent Member Councils and is 

established pursuant to Section 43 of the Local Government Act 1999 by the Councils. 

The Association is comprised of the following Constituent Member Councils:

1. District Council of Grant

2. Kingston District Council

3. City of Mount Gambier

4. Naracoorte Lucindale Council

5. District Council of Robe

6. Tatiara District Council

7. Wattle Range Council

Under its Charter, LCLGA’s objectives are to:

 ∠ Work in association with both the Local Government Association of South Australia (LGASA) and the Australian Local Government Association 

to assist in the achievement of their aims and objectives.

 ∠ Undertake co-coordinating, advocacy and representational roles on behalf of its Constituent Councils at a regional level.

 ∠ Facilitate and co-ordinate activities of local government at a regional level related to social, environmental and community development with the 

object of achieving improvement for the benefit of the communities of its Constituent Councils.

 ∠ Develop, encourage, promote, foster and maintain consultation and co-operation and to strengthen the representation 

and status of local government when dealing with other governments, private enterprise and the community.

 ∠ Develop further co-operation between its Constituent Councils for the benefit of the communities of its region.

 ∠ Develop and manage policies which guide the conduct of programs and projects in its region with the 

objective of securing the best outcomes for the communities of the region. 

 ∠ Undertake projects and activities that benefit its region and its communities.

 ∠ Associate, collaborate and work in conjunction with other regional local government 

bodies for the advancement of matters of common interest.

 ∠ Implement programs that seek to deliver local government services on a 

regional basis.

This document is the Annual Report of the Limestone Coast Local Government Association (LCLGA) Inc. for the period 1st July 2017 to 30th June 

2018. This document is prepared pursuant to the Local Government Act 1999 to report to Constituent Member Councils on the work and operation of 

the Association for the preceding financial year. 

This Report details the activities of the Association to represent and serve the seven Councils and to advance the Limestone Coast communities 

through effective advocacy, facilitation and innovation. 

OUR ASSOCIATION
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The Board held six ordinary bi-monthly General Meetings, and The Annual General Meeting during 2017 - 2018.   

Meetings are hosted by Constituent Councils on a rotational basis.

The Coorong District Council attends LCLGA meetings as welcomed observers.

COUNCIL DELEGATE DEPUTY BOARD MEMBER/S

City of Mount Gambier Mayor Andrew Lee
Cr Hanna Persello

Cr Ian Von Stanke

District Council of Grant Mayor Richard Sage
Cr Brian Collins

Cr Bruce Bain

Wattle Range Council Mayor Peter Gandolfi Cr Robert Dycer

District Council of Robe Mayor Peter Riseley Cr Harvey Nolan

Kingston District Council Mayor Reg Lyons
Cr Kay Rasheed 

Cr Chris England

Naracoorte Lucindale Council Mayor Erika Vickery
Cr Scott McLachlan 

Cr Craig McGuire

Tatiara District Council Mayor Graham Excell
Cr David Edwards 

Cr Robert Mock

STAFF MEMBER ROLE

Dominic Testoni Executive Officer

Michaela Bell Project Manager

Tony Elletson STARCLUB Field Officer

Rob Forgan Regional Community Road Safety Officer

Biddie Shearing Tourism Industry Development Manager

June Saruwaka (until March 19, 2018 Maternity Leave)

Prae Wongthong (commenced March 19, 2018)
Regional Waste Management Coordinator

Prae Wongthong (commenced August 21, 2017) Climate Adaptation Project Officer

Mae Steele Executive Support Officer

LCLGA BOARD MEMBERS 2017-18

In accordance with the LCLGA Charter, the positions of LCLGA President and Vice President are appointed at the Annual General Meeting, held in 

February.

At the Annual General Meeting in February 2018, Mayor Erika Vickery was again elected as LCLGA President, to serve in the position for a period of 

12 months. Mayor Richard Sage was elected as LCLGA Vice President. 

During 2017 - 2018, the Executive Officer role was filled by Dominic Testoni. Galpins are the appointed Auditor. 

During 2017 - 2018, LCLGA engaged the following staff to deliver regional programs:

The LCLGA Board comprises nominated representatives from each of the Constituent Councils and is chaired by the LCLGA President.  

Each Constituent Council can nominate up to two Deputy Board Members.

OFFICE BEARERS 2017-18
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COMMITTEE / WORKING PARTY REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL

LC LGA Roads and Transport Working Group 

Cr Jamie Jackson (Chair)

Mr Aaron Hillier
Tatiara District Council

Mr Daryl Morgan City of Mount Gambier

Mr Steve Bourne Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mr Dave Worthley Kingston District Council

Mr Peter Halton Wattle Range Council

Mr Adrian Schutz District Council of Grant

Mr Trevor Hondow

Cr David Loxton (proxy)
Robe District Council

Mr Dominic Testoni 

Mr Rob Forgan
LCLGA

Limestone Coast Economic Development 

Reference Group

Mayor Erika Vickery LCLGA President

Mayor Richard Sage

Mr David Singe (Proxy)
District Council of Grant

Mr Ben Gower

Mr Steve Chapple
Wattle Range Council

Mr Mark McShane City of Mount Gambier

Mr Trevor Smart Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mayor Peter Riseley District Council of Robe

Mr Andrew MacDonald Kingston District Council

Mr Roger Sweetman Robe District Council

Mayor Graham Excell Tatiara District Council 

Mr Dominic Testoni LCLGA

COUNCIL LC LGA REPRESENTATIVE

LGA Board Mayor Erika Vickery

Mayor Richard Sage (Proxy) 

SAROC Mayor Erika Vickery

Mr Dominic Testoni

Mayor Richard Sage (Proxy)

Under the Constitution of the LGASA, regions are represented via appointed members to serve on the LGA Board and the South Australian Regional 

Organisation of Councils (SAROC).

SAROC is an important LGA committee for non-metropolitan Councils.  Membership is drawn from each of the six non-metropolitan Regional Local 

Government Associations with members meeting bi-monthly to discuss the key issues affecting non-metropolitan Councils.

DELEGATES TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION OF SOUTH AUSTRALIA

ASSOCIATION COMMITTEES AND WORKING PARTIES
To undertake specific projects or fulfil areas of operational responsibility, LCLGA convenes a number of committees and working parties. 

LCLGA acknowledges the work of all who have contributed to the following committees and working parties throughout 2017 - 2018.
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COMMITTEE / WORKING PARTY REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL

LCLGA Regional Waste Management 

Steering Committee

Mr David Worthley Kingston District Council

Mr Steve Bourne Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mr Nick Serle City of Mount Gambier

Ms Nicole Dodds District Council of Grant

Mr Nick Brown Robe District Council

Mr Andrew Pollock Tatiara District Council

Mr Peter Halton Wattle Range Council

Mrs June Saruwaka 

Mr Dominic Testoni 

Ms Mae Steele

LCLGA

Tourism Management Group

Ms Jane Fetherstonhaugh District Council of Grant

Mr Roger Sweetman District Council of Robe

Mrs Sally Klose Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mr Andrew MacDonald Kingston District Council

Mr Steve Chapple Wattle Range Council

Ms Donna Foster City of Mount Gambier

Ms Anne Champness Tatiara District Council

Mrs Biddie Shearing 

Mr Dominic Testoni
LCLGA

Limestone Coast Climate  

Adaption Committee Members

Mr David Singe District Council of Grant

Mayor Peter Riseley District Council of Robe

Mr Steve Bourne Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Cr Robert Mock Tatiara District Council

Ms Barbara Cernovskis City of Mount Gambier

Ms Lauren Oxlade Wattle Range Council 

Mr Andrew MacDonald Kingston District Council

Mr David Wheaton RDA Limestone Coast

Ms Michelle Benison
Department of Environment,  

Water and Natural Resources

Ms Kerry DeGaris
South East Natural Resources  

Management Board

Mr Tim Collins
Department of Environment,  

Water and Natural Resources

Mr Dominic Testoni

Mrs Prae Wongthong

Mrs Michaela Bell

LCLGA
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COMMITTEE / WORKING PARTY REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL

Regional Sport & Recreation

Advisory Group

Mrs Ashlea Watson City of Mount Gambier

Ms Jane Fetherstonhaugh District Council of Grant

Ms Heather Schinkel Kingston District Council

Mrs Sally Klose Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mr Nick Brown District Council of Robe

Ms Naomi Fallon Tatiara District Council

Ms Sarah Mrzec

Mr Steve Chapple
Wattle Range Council

Mr Tony Elletson LCLGA

LCLGA has numerous representatives on working parties, boards and committees including State Government boards, cross border bodies and 

regional boards and committees.  This representation allows LCLGA to keep in touch with communities and have input to new and existing initiatives.

During 2017-2018, LCLGA made or continued the following appointments to other organisations.

ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATION - OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS

BOARD / COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVE (FROM 2016) COUNCIL

South East Natural Resources Management Board Mr Dominic Testoni LCLGA

South East Zone Emergency Management 

Committee 

Mr David Hood (Chair) On behalf of Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mr Dominic Testoni (Delegate) LCLGA

Limestone Coast Zone Emergency Centre 

Committee

Mr Dominic Testoni 

(Local Government Controller)
LCLGA

Mr Leith McEvoy  

(Local Government Deputy Controller)
District Council of Grant

Green Triangle Freight Action Plan - 

Implementation Management Group

Mr Peter Halton Wattle Range Council

Mr Dominic Testoni City of Mount Gambier

Limestone Coast Community Services 

Roundtable

Mayor Erika Vickery Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mrs Hanna Persello City of Mount Gambier

Regional Development Australia Limestone 

Coast

Mayor Erika Vickery Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mayor Richard Sage District Council of Grant

Mayor Andrew Lee City of Mount Gambier

Limestone Coast Bushfire Management 

Committee

Mr David Hood On behalf of Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mr Roger Balbolka Wattle Range Council

Southern Border Fire Coordination Association Mr Dominic Testoni LCLGA

Local Government Association of SA - LGA Board

Mayor Erika Vickery (Delegate) Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mayor Richard Sage Proxy) District Council of Grant

SAROC

Mayor Erika Vickery (Delegate) Naracoorte Lucindale Council

Mayor Richard Sage (Deputy Delegate) District Council of Grant

Mr Dominic Testoni (Delegate) LCLGA
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DESIRED REGIONAL OUTCOME LC LGA ROLE LC LGA ACTIONS 2017-18

1.1

Existing and future regional infrastructure 

is fit for purpose and has the capacity to 

meet the region’s needs.

1.1.1 Regional Leadership

Lead the implementation of the LCLGA 

2030 Regional Transport Plan, including a 

review in response to updated wood flow 

data and council requirements.

1.1.2 Advocacy

Advocate for appropriate State and 

Australian Government investment in the 

upgrade, maintenance and operation of the 

South-East drainage and bridge network, 

in partnership with the South East Natural 

Resources Management Board, RDALC 

and the South Eastern Water Conservation 

and Drainage Board.

1.1.3 Council Coordination

Effectively coordinate regional submissions 

for the Special Local Roads Program to 

maximise investment in regional road 

infrastructure.

1.2
Councils to protect built heritage, heritage 

spaces and the region’s cultural heritage.
1.2.1 Council Coordination

Effectively coordinate and manage a 

regional Heritage Advisory Service for the 

benefit of Constituent Councils and private 

owners.

1.3

Development of a regional approach to the 

maintenance and provision of improved 

and new infrastructure and utility services.

1.3.1 Advocacy

Advocate for the region for improved 

and sustainable services from State and 

Australian Governments in meeting our 

regional needs for:

• Roads

• National Broadband Network 

• Mobile phone coverage

1.1.1 Our Roads and Transport Management Group has continued to investigate ways in which the Regional Plans can be used to attract additional 

funding to the region.  The Group has also discussed the introduction of the National Heavy Vehicle Regulator (NHVR) guidelines in particular; 

readiness for the launch of the Road Manager Portal, return of permit delegation for Class 1 vehicles from DPTI to NHVR and assessment of 

road networks to allow safer, more efficient access for PV, PBS and OSOM vehicles.            

1.1.2 South East drainage and bridge network:  We have continued to prosecute the regions concerns with the continued under-investment in the 

road and bridge network and highlighted the importance of this network to the continued economic viability of the region.
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COUNCIL ROAD ROAD TYPE ESTIMATED PROJECT COST $ $ SLRP SOUGHT

1 DC Grant Mingbool Road Freight 800,000.00 400,000.00

2 Naracoorte Lucindale Kingston Ave/Donald Street Freight 750,000.00 375,000.00

3 Tatiara District Council Ramsay Terrace Freight 150,000.00 75,000.00

4 Wattle Range Council Wandilo Forrest Freight 600,000.00 300,000.00

5 Wattle Range Council Whites Road Freight 260,000.00 130,000.00

6 Tatiara District Council Meatworks Road Freight 550,000.00 275,000.00

7 District Council Robe Bagdad Road/Dairy Range Road Freight 490,000.00 245,000.00

8 City of Mount Gambier Elizabeth Street Community 140,000.00 70,000.00

9 City of Mount Gambier Caldwell Street Community 140,000.00 70,000.00

 $ 3,880,000.00 $ 1,940,000.00

1.2.1 Heritage Advisory Service:  LCLGA currently engages Habitable Places Architects to deliver the Limestone Coast Heritage Advisory Services 

to Constituent Councils on a fee-for-service, under an Agreement for 2016-2021. 

 The Heritage Adviser works closely with and under the direction of Councils’ planning and development assessment staff to provide timely and 

considered professional advice that includes:  

 •    Heritage conservation advice 

•    Statutory DA assessment and advice 

•    Policy advice to Council 

•    Local Heritage Development Plan Amendments  

•    CDAP/Heritage Committee 

•    State Heritage Unit

A copy of the Heritage Advisors Annual Report for 2017-2018 is available from participating councils or the LCLGA.

1.3.1 Advocate for the region for improved and sustainable services from State and Australian Governments in meeting our regional needs for; 

roads, national broadband network and mobile phone coverage:  

 Strategic Partnership with the Department of Planning, Transport and Infrastructure: During the past twelve months we have continued to have 

discussions with the Department about the need to work closer together on the planning of the regional road network.  Our discussions have 

also included the desire to increase investment across the region and looking to partner in the delivery of capital and maintenance projects.            

 LCLGA has continued to work with RDA Limestone Coast, the LGA South Australia and Federal and State members of parliament to ensure our 

region is recognised for continued mobile black spot funding.

1.1.3 Special Local Roads:  LCLGA submitted nine prioritised applications for funding under the Special Local Roads Program (SLRP) for  

2017-2018, requesting a total of $1,940,000
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DESIRED REGIONAL OUTCOME LC LGA ROLE LC LGA ACTIONS 2017-18

2.1

A growing and diverse economy, based on 

the region’s natural assets and innovative 

community, under the priorities of: 

Premium Food and Wine from our Clean 

Environment; and Growing Advanced 

Manufacturing.

2.1.1 Regional Leadership

Lead the Limestone Coast Economic 

Diversification Project.

Convene the Limestone Coast Economic 

Development Group and lead the 

implementation of the Limestone Coast 

Economic Diversification Group Work Plan.

2.1.2 Advocacy

Strongly advocate for investment, projects, 

legislation/policy review or development to 

promote economic growth in the region.

2.1.3 Partnership

Partner with RDA Limestone Coast to drive 

economic development projects for the 

Region.

2.2

A thriving and well-supported tourism 

industry, growing the region’s status as a 

visitor destination.

2.2.1 Advocacy

Advocate for and support industry 

leadership and support the work of the 

Limestone Coast Collaborative and recently 

adopted regional Brand.

2.2.2 Delivery
Deliver a Regional Tourism Development 

Program for the Limestone Coast.

2.2.3
Regional Leadership and 

Advocacy

Continue to represent the region at the 

Regional Tourism Chairs Forum at State level.

2.3

A sustainable population base with the 

skills and capability to grow regional 

economic development.

2.3.1 Advocacy

Assist key regional bodies and the South 

Australian Government with the objective to 

grow our population, develop our regional 

workforce, and to build skills and capability 

in our communities, through participation 

in the development of a Limestone Coast 

Attraction and Retention Strategy.

2.1.1 Convene the Limestone Coast Economic Development Reference Group:  The Group continues to be an important forum to further regional priorities.  

The Group consists of LCLGA members and RDA Limestone Coast.  It continues to work with the State Government through Primary Industries and 

Regions SA (PIRSA) and the Department of State Development.  Some of the major projects discussed include:

 ∠ Bio-economy project:  RDA Limestone Coast continue to lead this project and have assessed a number of applications for feasibility of bio-

economy concepts.

 ∠ Limestone Coast Collaborative: The group successfully launched a regional Brand in December 2016.  Since January 2017 the LCLGA has 

taken on the governance of the project and has developed a regional promotional video in both English and Mandarin, and has developed an 

implementation plan that will guide the strategic rollout and uptake of the regional brand. 

 ∠ Regional Leadership Program: A steering committee has been formed and have developed a quality Leadership Program to be delivered across 

our region in early 2019. The program will be delivered by recognised leaders in this field the ‘Leaders Institute of SA’.  The program is designed 

to create long term sustainable community benefit and a more diverse cohort of regional leaders to; 

 I. develop and facilitate the emergence of local leaders 

 II. build the understanding of regional issues 

 III. foster stronger connections and local networks 

 IV. increase self-confidence to engage and lead 

 V. influence positive outcomes for our region

2. SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY
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 ∠  Red meat cluster: The Red Meat Cluster has continued to assess the potential of the sector and to gain valuable information related to Industry 

Benchmarking and Decision Support Systems.  The LCLGA provided a grant of $30,000 in recognition of the following four key areas that assist 

in the sustainability, growth and profitability of the red meat sector in the Limestone Coast. 

 1. Red Meat industry leadership & collaboration 

 2. Skills development for profitability 

 3. Value chain connectivity 

 4. Research & extension

2.1.2 Strongly advocate for investment, projects etc:  We continue to have a strong working relationship with the RDA Limestone Coast and cooperate 

on regional projects.  In partnership with the Regional Australian Institute (RAI) and with support from RDA LC and each of the seven constituent 

councils the LC LGA developed a Regional Growth Strategy and Action Plan. It provides the evidence base, priority areas for focus, strategic 

directions, and potential actions required to give regional confidence.  Six priority areas have been identified and include:

 1. Invigorate the working age population, by attracting and retaining more people across the region to fill key skills gaps and support vibrant and  

 sustainable regional communities 

2. Building on the regions competitive advantage in agribusiness 

3. Capturing employment opportunities in growing sectors like healthcare and social assistance 

4. Supporting the development of a vibrant business ecosystem 

5. Region wide collaboration to develop a more coordinated tourism market 

6. Securing investment to deliver regional infrastructure priorities enabling growth

2.1.3 Partner with RDA Limestone Coast to drive economic development:  As the lead agency in the Limestone Coast we recognise the importance of 

resourcing the RDA so that they can continue to represent the regions interests.  Our member Councils are looking to continue to be a strategic 

funding partner.  The ongoing partnership will be guided by assessing key strategic projects related to economic diversification activities, the 

provision of a support service for small business and leadership to attract external funding into the region. 

2.2.1 Advocate and support industry leadership:  The (LCLGA) agreed to oversee the ongoing governance model for the Limestone Coast Collaborative 

(LCC) and support the implementation and management of the regional brand.  The brand has been well supported by the seven constituent 

councils, however more is needed to be done to encourage the uptake of the brand and educate those who would benefit from the Limestone Coast 

brand. The LCLGA engaged the services of an experienced brand agency to maximise the longevity of the Limestone Coast brand and improve its 

ability to expand throughout the region by developing a 2-minute video explaining the brand, what it means and how it can be used by operators, 

industry and relevant associations.  

2.2.2 Deliver a Regional Tourism Industry Development Program:  The regional tourism program continues to be a strategic partnership between LCLGA 

and the South Australian Tourism Commission. The focus has been to facilitate activities to develop business capacity, grow tourism business 

through more visitation and longer length of stay. This is achieved through a comprehensive work plan which aligns with the LCL-GA Strategic 

Priority No.2 - SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY: A thriving and well supported tourism industry, growing the regions status as a visitor destination. In the 

past twelve months, we have endorsed the Regional Tourism Strategy and accompanying Implementation Plan   

2.2.3 Regional Tourism Chairs Forum:  LCLGA via our Executive Officer has continued to represent the region at the State Level.  We have been 

representing the regions views to the State body and has sought direction from the LCLGA TIDM on many occasions to ensure our work plans 

remain relevant and in sync with other regional areas. 

2.3.1 Assist key regional bodies and the South Australian Government with the objective to grow our population:  The Limestone Coast Regional Growth 

Strategy identified ‘Invigorating the working age population, by attracting and retaining more people across the region to fill key skills gaps and 

support vibrant and sustainable regional communities’ as a priority area for growing the population in the Limestone Coast.  The LCLGA is in the 

initial stages of investigating a migration program to attract new people to the region, targeting immediate labour and skills shortage opportunities as 

well as larger regionally planned and coordinated programs over the medium and long term.

2. SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY

STRATEGIC ACTIVITIES 2017-18

12



DESIRED OUTCOME LC LGA ROLE LC LGA ACTIONS 2017-18

3.1

Local Government is a key partner in 

the sustainable management of the 

environment and natural resources in the 

region.

3.1.1 Advocacy and Partnership

Through implementation of the Local 

Government Resource Industry Protocol 

2015, lead appropriate regional action to 

ensure that resource development projects, 

including mining and unconventional 

gas, are environmentally sustainable, 

have approval of impacted landholders, 

provide for community consultation, and 

are governed by legislation and regulation 

appropriate to the Limestone Coast.

3.1.2 Partnership

In partnership with Natural Resources 

South East and RDALC, participate in the 

Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment 

and Planning Project. 

3.2
A regional approach to landfill minimisation 

and innovative waste management.

3.2.1 Council Coordination

Coordinate shared resources for the 

Regional Waste Management Coordinator 

to deliver a regional approach to waste 

management.

3.2.2 Delivery

In partnership with Constituent Councils, 

implement the South East Regional Waste 

Management Strategy to facilitate a 

regional approach to waste management.

3.3

Well-managed and protected terrestrial, 

wetland, coastal and marine environments, 

with active partnership from all responsible 

organisations.

3.3.1 Partnership

Partner with Natural Resources South 

East to deliver two Australian Government 

funded coastal projects: Implementing the 

Limestone Coast and Coorong Coastal 

Action Plan; and Limestone Coastwatchers. 

3.1.1 Local Government Resource Industry Protocol 2015:  LCLGA continues to represent the region with regard to unconventional gas exploration 

and mining practices that are environmentally sustainable.  Each member Council continues to communicate with their respective constituents 

and we remain open to having a mature debate about the perceived benefits of this industry whilst weighing up the impacts that may be caused 

to our fragile environment.  The Limestone Coast is a unique part of Australia with vast groundwater reserves that should not be compromised if 

the best scientific evidence suggests there is a risk of environmental degradation or the chance of contamination.        

3.1.2 Limestone Coast Regional Climate Adaptation Plan. The Limestone Coast Regional Adaptation Plan identifies ten key areas of decision making 

and a range of adaptation options across the Region. The Regional Adaptation Plan states the need for education and awareness raising 

of climate change and its impacts, particularly in relation to extreme events such as heatwave, flooding from storm surge and sea level rise 

and bushfire. With the support of the Limestone Coast Climate Adaptation Committee (LCCAC) the Limestone Coast Climate Education and 

Awareness Strategy (CEAS) has been developed with the following objectives: 

 • To enhance understanding and awareness of climate risks and opportunities; 

• To better understand benefits of mitigation and adaptation options;  

• To promote behavioural change in order to manage risks, build adaptive capacity and resilient societies, and reduce overall vulnerabilities

 The CEAS forms the commitment of the Limestone Coast Local Government Association (consisting of 7 Constituent Councils) to ensure that the 

community and partner stakeholders have the information and support they need to make the right decisions.

3. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
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3.2.1 Regional Waste Management Coordinator:  This is a fully funded position from the member Councils.  The primary purpose of the position 

is to develop a regional approach to landfill minimization and innovative waste management.  The management committee is made up of 

representatives of each of the member councils and meet bi-monthly to set priorities and monitor the work program. Initiatives for the past twelve 

months include; identifying areas for coordination of activities to improve efficiency, reducing food waste to landfill through awareness raising 

programs & the Limestone Coast school waste reduction and recycling challenge. 

3.2.2 Implement the South East Regional Waste Management Strategy:  The LC LGA have supported the development of a Limestone Coast Waste 

and Resource Recovery Plan. The Limestone Coast Waste and Resource Recovery Plan is an essential document with the purpose of examining 

ways to create efficiencies, identify improvements to existing infrastructure and provide a coordinated approach to regional waste management 

for the LC LGA and its seven constituent councils. Rawtec were appointed as the preferred provider to deliver the required piece of work with 

completion due October 2018. 

3.3.1 Implement the Limestone Coastwatchers 2013 - 2018:  The LCLGA sub-contracts the delivery of this project to the Department of Environment, 

Water and Natural Resources in the region. A Project Management Committee has oversight of the project, which includes the LCLGA Executive 

Officer & Project Manager, Mayor Peter Riseley District Council of Robe and DEWNR staff. Funded by the Caring for our Country program 

($980,000), the Limestone Coastwatchers program key outcomes over the duration of the project include:

 o Delivering the Coastal Connections holiday program to 5855 participants over the first two weeks of summer each January from 2014 to 2018  

 (project target was 5000 participants) . Activities included snorkelling at Piccaninnie Ponds, Rockpool Rambles, Coastal Bush Tucker, night  

 walks, cultural sessions and guided bird talks.  Delivered in partnership with community groups, councils and NGO’s such as Nature Glenelg Trust. 

 o Providing support to Burrandies in establishing their labour hire business and continued to employ 0.4FTE staff member working out of  

 Southend to the end of 2017/18.  Supported an additional casual working 0.2FTE for the latter half of the year and there is scope for ongoing  

 labour hire dependent on funding.  

 o Erosion control work undertaken at 33 sites (target of 15) covering 240ha (200 hectares of works planned).  Some revegetation was  

 associated with this work with approximately 4500 seedlings planted to help stabilise erosion prone areas.  Key examples of this work  

 include in and around the Robe Obelisk and walking track, Finger Point near Port MacDonnell and multiple sites in Canunda National Park,  

 Little Dip and Beachport Conservation Parks. 

 o Access control to managed vehicles installed at 46 sites exceeding the planned 300ha of protected area – also at Finger Point, Little Dip CP,  

 Canunda National Park and crown land north of the Kingston township.

 o Working with more than the 5 planned schools delivering coastal education sessions.  While the focus was on marine debris, sessions also  

 delivered around coastal geomorphology and coastal weeds.  44 sessions delivered over the life of the project. 

 o In total, some 4000 community members were involved in coastal activities including beach clean ups, vegetation surveys, Reef Watch  

 intertidal sessions and other volunteer activities. 

 o 245km of beach clean-ups (marine debris removal)– while 250km was the target, some sections of beach yielded high volumes of rubbish  

 with 3.2T collected from a 300m stretch of beach in Canunda National Park in 2017. 

 o Vegetation monitoring completed so we now have baseline data for coastal grasslands, coastal saltmarsh/orange-bellied parrot habitat and  

 Dryland coastal tea tree communities.  To be reported in the Limestone Coast Condition Check Report currently in prep. 

 o Surveys undertaken of coastal threatened orchid communities (Little Dip Spider Orchid and Maroon Leek Orchid) with the assistance of  

 volunteers from the Native Orchid Society of SA.  Reports including recommendations for local management prepared by NOSSA as part of  

 this process. 

 o Engaged volunteers in follow-up work from the coastal project which concluded at the end of 2016/17 (Implementing the Limestone coast  

 and Coorong Coastal Action Plan) with 30,000 tree guards removed from 3 revegetation sites.  

 o Signage standard for coastal councils prepared and circulated to LCLGA earlier this year.
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4.1.1 Advocate for expanded mental health and drug treatment:    The LC LGA continues to support the Substance Misuse Limestone Coast project 

setting aside $40,000 in the coming years budget. A Project Officer was appointed in October 2017 

4.2.1 Regional Public Health and Wellbeing Plan:   

Wellbeing and resilience has been identified as a vital link to improving a significant number of priority areas in Local Government Regional 

Health Plans and is also recognised at a regional level as a focus area by the agencies represented at the Limestone Coast Community Services 

Roundtable.  In the new financial year, the LCLGA is looking to undertake a project that will assess the currency of the existing Regional Public 

Health and Wellbeing Plan and look to draft a document that fits with current thinking, terminology and the resources available to deliver on the 

Plan.

4.3.1 Partner with the Office of Recreation and Sport to deliver the STARCLUB Program for the Limestone Coast.  Our StarClub program continues 

to be one of the largest programs run in South Australia and our Project Manager has been able to impart the benefits of the program onto 

a large number of regional sporting bodies.  This has enabled many small sporting organisations to increase their level of professionalism 

and governance structures.  He has also been able to assist with the development of grant proposals that has seen funds for sporting facility 

upgrades come into the region.

DESIRED OUTCOME LC LGA ROLE LC LGA ACTIONS 2017-18

4.1

Regional communities have access to 

appropriate health and education services 

and facilities. 

4.1.1 Advocacy

Advocate for expanded mental health and 

drug treatment services and support in the 

Limestone Coast.

Encourage and support the initiatives 

of Constituent Councils to be expanded 

regionally, particularly regarding suicide 

prevention and other priority issues with 

significant impacts on regional areas.

4.2

Regional communities have access to 

programs and facilities promoting a healthy 

lifestyle.

4.2.1 Partnership and Delivery

Partner with Constituent Councils to deliver 

the Regional Public Health and Well-being 

Plan.

Partner with the Office of Recreation and 

Sport to deliver the STARCLUB Program for 

the Limestone Coast.

Partner with Constituent Councils to deliver 

the Limestone Coast Regional Trails Master 

Plan (Stage 2).

4.3

Local Government is a key regional partner 

in emergency management, road safety 

and other community safety programs.

4.3.1 Council Coordination

Assist to coordinate Constituent Councils’ 

role in Zone Emergency Management 

to ensure appropriate role for Local 

Government in emergency response and 

recovery. This includes membership of the 

Zone Emergency Management Committee 

and the Zone Emergency Centre.

4.3.2 Partnership and Delivery

Partner with the Motor Accident 

Commission (MAC), and work with relevant 

State agencies and community road safety 

groups to implement the South East Road 

Safety Strategy, including the engagement 

of a Regional Community Road Safety 

Officer to coordinate regional efforts to 

reduce road crashes and trauma.

4. COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL WELLBEING
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 4.3.1 Zone Emergency Management:  LCLGA and all Constituent Councils are members of the Zone Emergency Management Committee with 

responsibility for regional emergency preparedness and response planning and implementation. 

 The LCLGA Executive Officer is the Local Government Controller on the Zone Emergency Support Team (ZEST). The Centre is activated in the 

case of a regional emergency; the role of the Local Government Controller is to provide a single point of contact for Local Government across 

the region for the Control Agency to enable the efficient transmission of information and coordination of resources.  

   The Executive Officer also attends the Southern Border Fire Coordination Association meetings with representation from our neighbouring shires 

in Victoria. 

 During the past twelve months, the State Government released the updated State Emergency Management Plan.  One of the key changes in this 

Plan is that Local Government sector is now considered a whole of Government Group and the LGA have been instrumental in establishing the 

Local Government Functional Support Group.  The LCLGA and other regional LGA’s have been assisting the LGA SA in progressing this work 

and continues to play a vital role in Local Governments involvement in emergency management.

4.3.2 Partner with Motor Accident Commission:  The Limestone Coast Local Government Regional Road Safety Partnership is unique in South Australia 

and continues to work on road safety issues that affect all our 7-member councils. Sponsored by MAC and supported by regional stakeholders 

the program continues to provide evidence that builds a clear case for the successful delivery of road safety initiatives in the region from the 

very region it serves.    The employment of a Regional Community Road Safety Officer (0.6 FTE) provides leadership and coordination within 

our region. This position has enabled stronger links to our association’s internal operations, e.g. its links to the LCLGA Roads and Transport 

Working Group and member Council’s infrastructure developments.   Local Government is a key partner in the continuing campaign “Towards 

Zero Together “the State Road Safety Strategy 2020.  This has assumed greater importance with the Australian Government demanding that road 

safety is an essential criterion when applying for Commonwealth road infrastructure funding.

4. COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL WELLBEING
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DESIRED OUTCOME LC LGA ROLE LC LGA ACTIONS 2017-18

5.1

LCLGA is recognised as the regional 

leadership body which provides a 

framework and coordination for other 

regional groups.

5.1.1 Regional Leadership

Lead regional advocacy and action on 

priority issues, and actively engage and 

coordinate partner organisations’ action on 

common regional issues, including:

  • Emergency Services Sector Reform

  • Unconventional gas exploration and 

development in the Region

Facilitate active engagement and 

participation of Constituent Councils on 

issues and decisions that impact their 

communities.

5.2
Regional Local Government is effective 

and cost efficient.
5.2.1 Council Coordination

Deliver Stage 2 of the Regional Planning 

Alliance Project and the Memorandum of 

Understanding between all Constituent 

Councils.

Identify and coordinate practical 

opportunities for joint investment, 

shared services and resources between 

Constituent Councils and the LGA that 

improve service delivery and provide cost 

savings.

Coordinate and convene specialist LCLGA 

Working Groups to address and take action 

on regional issues of common interest to 

Constituent Councils, including:

• Roads and Transport Working Group

• Limestone Coast Regional Trails 

Implementation Group

• Limestone Coast Economic 

Diversification Group

• Regional Waste Management  

Steering Committee

• Regional Sport and Recreation 

Advisory Group

• Regional Planning Alliance 

Implementation Group

• LCLGA Charter and Subscription 

Review Working Party

• Vocational Education, Training and 

Skills Working Party

5.3 A well-governed regional organisation. 5.3.1 Delivery
Finalise the review of the LCLGA Charter with 

endorsement from all Constituent Councils.

5. LCLGA GOVERNANCE, LEADERSHIP & FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
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5.4

LCLGA maintains its reputation with State 

and Australian Governments as a leading 

Local Government body and ef-fective 

advocate for the Limestone Coast.

5.4.1 Advocacy

Lead effective and targeted advocacy 

campaigns on priority regional issues, 

in partnership with Constituent Councils, 

the LGA and regional organisations as 

appropriate.

Continue to be active members of SAROC 

and the LGA Board to support LCLGA’s 

advocacy on regional issues and issues 

affecting Local Government. 

Lead the region’s response and input to 

the State and Australian Governments on 

key issues and opportunities, acting as a 

single point of contact for regional visits 

and requests.

5.5

Effective communications with Constituent 

Councils, partner organisations and the 

community.

5.5.1 Delivery

Renew the LCLGA website to a modern 

platform to provide an up-to-date 

communication tool. 

Continue LCLGA representation on key 

outside organisations.

5.6

LCLGA financial processes are transparent 

and efficient, ensuring a sustainable 

financial position.

5.6.1 Delivery

Implement an annual program of budget 

development, consultation, adoption and 

review.

Ensure that the LCLGA Board and 

Constituent Councils are provided with 

bimonthly financial and performance 

reports, and an Annual Report.

Explore approaches to attract funding for 

LCLGA to deliver or partner on priority 

regional projects, in particular the Regional 

Planning Alliance and Regional Trails 

Implementation projects.

5. LCLGA GOVERNANCE, LEADERSHIP & FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
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5.1.1 Lead Regional Advocacy:   

As the peak Local Government body in the region, LCLGA continues to work closely with our local Members of Parliament, Federal Member for 

Barker Mr Tony Pasin, Member for Mount Gambier Mr Troy Bell, and Member for Mackillop Mr Mitch Williams & Nick McBride, and commends 

the work they do on behalf of our region.  Additional to maintaining these close working relationships we also maintain close contact with 

both the State and Federal Government and regularly meets with Ministers and senior agency staff on issues relevant to the Region.  During 

2017 - 2018, LCLGA maintained its close partnership with the Hon Geoff Brock MP, Minister for Local Government and Minister for Regional 

Development and the Hon. Tim Whetstone MP, Minister for Primary Industries and Regional Development. 

5.2.1 Regional Planning Alliance: 

Our Executive Officer has represented the region on the State Project Working Advisory Group that has been working towards developing a 

Toolkit for the establishment of Joint Planning Boards in line with the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016.

5.4.1 Targeted Advocacy Campaigns on regional priorities and representation at SAROC: 

President of the LCLGA Mayor Erika Vickery and the Executive Officer Dominic Testoni continue to attend SAROC meetings and have input into 

the many regional issues that are elevated to the LGASA Board for consideration.

5.5.1 Review Website and develop effective communications strategies: 

This project will continue into the next financial year in an effort to develop a communication strategy and platform that best targets and 

represents the important regional work that we undertake.  Developing a modern platform for communication is seen to be essential to 

continually inform, not only our regional and state partners, but to broadcast our regional strengths to an international audience.  The Limestone 

Coast region is a power house of the South Australian economy and our goal is to ensure we have the best resources available to communicate 

that message. 

5.6.1 Financial Reporting and budget development: 

We continue to hold our bi-monthly Board meetings across the Limestone Coast with the full suite of financial reports and project reports being 

tabled for consideration.  Budgets are prepared and sent out for Council feedback throughout April and May each year with final adoption of the 

Annual Budget taking place at the June Board meeting.  

 Throughout the year many motions are also tabled for the Board’s consideration and we thank those member Councils for utilising the strength 

of the regional body to prosecute their case to the State and Federal levels.  Throughout the year our staff continually monitor the grants 

environment to assess opportunities as they arrive.  In this past year we have been able to attract additional funding via ad-hoc grant programs.      
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The Limestone Coast was represented at the following Trade Events, specifically targeting our key international markets of United 

Kingdom, Europe/Germany, China, United State of America, India, South East Asia and New Zealand.

 ∠ India Travel Mission – Pune, August 2017. Secured 90 face to face appointments with leading travel wholesalers and travel influencers 

from across India. This was a Tourism Australia managed event. 

 ∠ South East Asia Walkabout – Bali, September 2017.  Secured 78 face to face appointments with Online Travel Agents, Wholesalers 

and Inbound Tour Operators from across the markets of Singapore, Malaysia and Indonesia. This was a Tourism Australia managed 

event.

 ∠ Australian Tourism Exchange – Adelaide, April 2018. Secured 118 face to face appointments with wholesalers, online travel agents, 

inbound tour operators and tourism suppliers from Australia, United States of America, United Kingdom, China, New Zealand & 

Europe. 

The Limestone Coast continues to be a financial member of the Australian Tourism Export Council (ATEC) which enables the region to be 

viewed credibly when being represented internationally and domestically in the trade distribution system. The region also holds a position 

on the South Australian Branch Committee of ATEC.

The South Australian Tourism Commission (SATC) has one strategic partnership with each region in South Australia  

(there are 11 regions including Limestone Coast). 

The Limestone Coast Local Government Association is the preferred partner and we enjoy a strong working relationship which supports the strategic 

alliance. The SATC provides $45k pa to LCLGA, plus access to a further $20kpa (matched 1:1) for consumer facing activity. This financial agreement 

outlines pertinent KPI’s be achieved like being an in-region liaison for industry, political acumen and local intelligence. In addition, there is a requirement 

for the Tourism Industry Development Manager to assess certain funding applications that may have a tourism outcome, for example Events Funding. 

The LCLGA Tourism Management Group continues to monitor and oversee the implementation of the regional Priorities to Grow the Visitor Economy by 

2020 within our Regional Tourism Framework - pictured below.

INDUSTRY

The Limestone Coast Collaborative 

Custodians of the Limestone Coast Regional 

Brand

24 x Tourism & Business Interest Groups 

875 tourism business across the region

South Australian Tourism Industry Council 

The peak body of the SA Tourism Industry

Limestone Coast Local Government 

Association 

Consisting of 7 local councils

Limestone Coast Economic Development 

Group 

A group of high level leaders and economic 

practitioners focused on driving the region 

forward with their LCED Group Work Plan.

Regional Development Australia Limestone 

Coast

South Australian Tourism Commission

Regions SA / PIRSA

Dept. Environment, Water, Natural Resources

Austrade

AusIndustry

REGIONAL LEADERSHIP GOVERNMENT

Delivering on the promise

Consumer Facing Activities

Capacity Building + Facilitation

Advocacy + Support

Leadership

Leadership

Capacity Building + Support

Funding

PRIORITY 1: GROW OUR SHARE IN INTERNATIONAL VISITOR EXPENDITURE
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In support of the above Trade activity, the region hosted a number of familiarisations with wholesalers, travel influencers and media from various 

countries, some as a result of meetings held previously at Trade Events. These familiarisations were hosted in partnership with the South Australian 

Tourism Commission and Tourism Australia.

To address the level of occupancy in the region, a new initiative to pursue more coach groups to the region was established. The LCLGA Tourism 

Management Group developed a campaign to increase the number of coach companies that tour through the Limestone Coast, including 

 ∠ Industry Workshops to build understanding of the customer and their needs

 ∠ Familiarisation program – hosting itinerary planners and Coach Captains.

 ∠ Develop Group Series Product Manual (digital version and a short-run print version)

 ∠ Targeted Trade Show attendance

 

The project was supported by the SATC with a financial contribution to help deliver and produce the product manual. It is expected to have the project 

completed by end of September 2018. 

As part of a large consortia, the LCLGA supported an application with Wine Australia to help fund an interactive trails project that aimed to bring 

together wine associations and other symbiotic organisations to build their capabilities and confidence to better target, attract and host international 

wine visitors. The funding application was successful, enabling the project – valued at $350k – to deliver a digital consumer-facing portal that will 

inform, entice and disperse travellers across the region, ultimately increasing length of stay and depth of meaningful experience. 

During the 12 month period, the LCLGA partnered with the South Australian Tourism Industry Council to host a workshop in region that focussed on 

Commission & The Distribution system. 15 tourism operators attended. 

The Limestone Coast international visitation is 46,000 with 284,000 nights valued at $19m.  

(Tourism Research Australia International Visitor Survey, year ending March 2018).
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Limestone Coast Booth at Australian Tourism Exchange,  

Adelaide, April 2018

South Australian team at SE Asia Walkabout, Bali, September 2017



Together with South Australian Tourism Commission, the regional established a subscription account on WeChat.

An industry prospectus was circulated to encourage paid content on the site by local tourism operators and attractions.

As part of our strategic partnership with the South Australian Tourism Commission, the Tourism Industry Development Manager supported 6 

applications in the Regional Events and Festivals funding programme. 3 events were successful in receiving money to contribute towards their 

marketing efforts that could lead to increased visitation and expenditure in the region. 

The region hosts over 110 events each calendar year and recognises the high level of volunteers, therefore con-ducted a survey with event organisers 

to determine how the LCLGA could provide support and assist with the capa-bilities at individual events. An events forum will be held in the next 

financial year.

The Limestone Coast purchased a membership with the Adelaide Convention Bureau as first step into establishing some formal activity in this area.

The Tourism Industry Development Manager participated in a masterclass to increase the level of understanding on how our region can leverage our 

membership and included training in the on-line pitch portal.

The LCLGA partnered with SATC & South Australian Tourism Industry Council (SATIC) to deliver a series of business capacity building workshops in 

the region based on the following themes: Digital Visibility, China Ready, ATDW, Packaging, Pricing & Partnerships 193 tourism operators participated. 

When representing the region, the Limestone Coast Regional Brand is used and supported to create awareness.

PRIORITY 2: BUILD ADVOCACY AND FORMALISE ACTIVITIES FOR  
THE ‘VISITING FRIENDS & RELATIVES’ SECTOR

PRIORITY 3: USE EVENTS TO GROW VISITATION 

PRIORITY 4: BUILD A REGIONAL PROPOSITION TO ATTRACT CORPORATE  
AND BUSINESS TRAVELLERS 

PRIORITY 5: WORK TOGETHER TO RAISE THE PROFILE OF THE LIMESTONE COAST 
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In March 2018, an e-newsletter was established, with regional branding, to help inform tourism 

operators about workshops, funding programmes, regional events and tips to help increase their 

digital visibility. The database has 271 operators, with an open rate of 43%.

PROJECT REPORTS - ANNUAL REPORTS 2017-18

REGIONAL TOURISM

23

Limestone Coast Brand at India Travel Mission 2017

Trade Presentation front cover

Launched a Limestone Coast Treasures Trail which grouped our China-ready experiences in 

English and Mandarin (that met certain criteria).



From 1 January 2018, China has increased the 

standard of recyclables it accepts as imports. 

This means that China no longer accepts the 

types of products that Australia can viably 

produce for export and the waste industry can 

no longer rely on China as a destination for its 

recyclable materials.

The impacts of the China National Sword Policy 

present an opportunity to re-shape South 

Australia’s as well as the Limestone Coast 

region’s recycling industry by developing 

local markets for recyclable materials and 

establishing a truly circular economy. 

The following are priority projects undertaken in 

the Limestone Coast:

LIMESTONE COAST REGIONAL WASTE AND 
RESOURCE RECOVERY INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN
The region faces challenges for waste management and related infrastructure including transporting waste from some locations to landfills in the 

region or to other regions, which involves long travel distances and associated costs. There are also long travel distances and high costs involved in 

sending recovered materials to recycling markets and exports in Adelaide and Melbourne.

The LCLGA acknowledge the significance of a coordinated approach to regional waste management for its seven constituent councils. In collaboration 

with consultants, the LCLGA commenced the development of Limestone Coast Regional Waste and Resource Recovery Infrastructure Plan in May 

2018.  The purposes of the project are:

1. To develop an integrated infrastructure plan that considers SA’s Waste Strategy 2015-2020 and the SA Waste and Resource Recovery 

Infrastructure Plan; 

2. To identify infrastructure required for the region that best achieves economies of scale; 

3. To identify options for future waste and resource recovery infrastructure; 

4. To identify options for the LC region to input waste with other regions to create a critical mass (legal restrictions associated with cross-border 

movement of waste needs to be specified in the plan); 

5. To identify innovative infrastructure for the region; 

6. To increase employment opportunities in the region through waste and resource recovery.

The plan will provide information on existing waste infrastructure in the region, current resource recovery initiatives and opportunities for infrastructure 

provision and improvements. The merits and cost benefits (or business case) of purchasing mobile and shared resource recovery equipment will be 

considered within current policy settings and economic climate.

To date, literature review, data collection, site visits and consultant to 19 businesses/ waste contractors in region have been completed. 

Neighboring councils in Victoria have been contacted to understand waste volume and waste and recycling infrastructure. Business case for 

alternatives and final plan will be delivered no later than October 2018.
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Throughout the year, the Limestone Coast region has taken collective actions to reduce the amount of waste disposed to landfills and 

increase efficiency in regional waste management. However, waste management remains a critical regional issue, and even become 

more significant after the announcement of China National Sword Policy in July 2017. 



WASTE LESS, DIVERT MORE

SCHOOL WASTE REDUCTION  
AND RECYCLING CHALLENGE

‘Waste Less, Divert More’ is adopted from the ‘Love Food Hate Waste’ campaign which runs in NSW and VIC. The project focus on reducing food 

waste disposed in the general waste bin through raising awareness on food waste, its impacts and how households can reduce it thus saving money 

and the environment. 

A short TV commercial has been produced using infographic and animation demonstrating the amount of food wasted in landfills, impacts on natural 

resources and environments, tips to avoid food waste and ways to recycle food scraps.

 ∠ Currently the commercial is broadcasted on WIN TV during targeted education programme, covering 50 spots from July to September. Total 

audience reached 89,700, including the Limestone Coast, Riverland, Murray Lands, Western Victoria and Southern New South Wales.

 ∠ The short video will be shared on Youtube, Council social media and the LCLGA website. 

 ∠ Other educational and awareness raising collateral (print and digital) are currently being developed and will be distributed in the region.

Putrescible waste in the Limestone Coast has to be transported over 100km in some parts of the region. If food waste is decreased by at least 10%, 

this would lead to about 450 tonnes of food waste being diverted from landfill, a decrease in greenhouse gasses emission, and savings for Councils.

The 2018 School Waste Reduction and Recycling Challenge is held for the second 

year following the successful outcomes in 2017.

This year competition categories increase from 3 categories to 4 categories as 

followed:

1. Least general waste per capita

2. Most recyclables per capita

3. Least amount of general waste and recycling generated per capita

4. Highest amount of waste composted per capita

This year 15 schools, kindergartens and childcare centres registered to take part in 

the challenge, with 12 schools undertaking waste reduction activities and engaging 

a total of 2,161 students across the Limestone Coast. Data of the observations were 

received from 10 schools.  Schools can enter as many competition categories as 

they like. The challenge commenced on 5 March and ended on 6 April 2018. Prizes 

are awarded to the top three schools in each category - First Prize $1,000, Second 

Prize $500, Third Prize $250. Prizes will be awarded at the Award Ceremony being 

organised at the August LCLGA Board meeting in District Council of Grant.

One of the significant outcomes of this project is that schools developed or improved 

strategies to reduce waste sent to landfill and are continuing to implement them, 

even after the challenge ended. Strategies used are such as nude food days, putting 

up posters around schools in strategic positions, newsletter articles, encouraging 

students to make their own sandwiches rather than buying sandwiches as these have 

a lot of packaging, and encouraging students to dispose waste in the correct bin.
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Local Government recognises the importance of sporting and recreation clubs to regional communities and is pleased to partner 

with the Office for Recreation and Sport to deliver the Star Club Program in the Limestone Coast.  The Star Club Program promotes 

involvement in recreation and sport by supporting all sporting and recreation clubs in the Limestone Coast in the areas of leadership, 

financial sustainability, compliance, planning and volunteer management. 

LCLGA hosts the Starclub Field Officer, who serves as an on-ground resource and a conduit between clubs, councils, associations and the Office of 

Recreation and Sport. The long term goals of this program are:

 ∠ to ensure clubs in the region are compliant with State and Federal legislation,

 ∠ clubs are financially stable through prudent self-management and have access to appropriate funding  

 ∠ maintain and build on membership, players and volunteers within the club.

The STARCLUB Field Officer provides support to clubs and associations in a number of areas:

Funding and Financial Stability 

Awareness of grant availability and application support, increased eligibility through Starclub membership, and education and training regarding 

financial stability.

Volunteer Management 

Sourcing and retaining volunteer support, running nationally-accredited training and education locally, information on education and training courses, 

providing templates for job descriptions for volunteers, Volunteer Management Policy assistance, ideas to involve, recognise and reward volunteers, 

and providing information on Succession Plans and complaints / conflict procedure.

Compliance 

Occupational Work, Health and Safety for club staff and volunteers, Child Protection, constitutions - update, review or start from scratch, incorporation, 

affiliation with State or national bodies, compliance with the Discrimination Act, risk management and information on licensing requirements for clubs 

selling alcohol.

Planning 

Long term maintenance of facilities, Strategic Planning, job descriptions, Codes of Conduct, Good Sports Program and Play by the Rules program. 

The Starclub Field Officer is guided by the Regional Sport and Recreation Advisory Group, established with membership from all Constituent Councils. 

This Group provides direction and feedback for the Starclub Field Officer as well as determining issues for clubs and associations that can be dealt 

with on a regional level.
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The STARCLUB Field Officer program delivered the following outcomes in 2017-18:

 ∠ Had 128 face to face meetings with clubs/associations providing support in the STARCLUB Program, as well as Funding, Strategic Planning, 

Facility Planning, Sports Tourism Opportunities, Conflict Resolution, Volunteer Support, Financial guidance and various other sports related 

issues. Plus provided support to clubs with hundreds of phone calls and emails received.

 ∠ Grant Assistance given to Clubs and Associations. The SFO provided advice and support to 36 clubs looking to apply for grants. In the 2017/18 

financial year over $2.2million of Office and Recreation and Sport Funding has been given to Limestone Coast Clubs and Associations  

 ∠ The STARCLUB Field Officer also provided the following training and education for clubs in the region. 

 -  3 Child Safe Officer Courses; 

    Mount Gambier - 13 attendees, representing 7 clubs 

     Millicent - 11 attendees, representing 7 clubs 

    Robe - 8 attendees, representing 3 clubs 

 -  2 Emotionally Coaching Children Courses; 

    Mount Gambier - 39 attendees, representing 25 clubs 

    Naracoorte - 11 attendees, representing 7 clubs 

 -  1 Essentials to Coaching Children Course; 

    Bordertown - 15 attendees, representing 9 clubs

 ∠ The SFO has worked with 7 clubs across the region on putting together their Strategic Plan. This has been a free service for clubs.  

To get a private consultant to come in and put together a plan would cost clubs hundred and maybe even over a thousand dollars.  

A strategic plan helps clubs become sustainable long term and is an essential tool when applying for funding, especially facility improvement 

funding.
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LIMESTONE COAST REGIONAL SPORTING ACADEMY  
(PILOT PROGRAM)
In partnership with the Office for Recreation and Sport and the LCLGA, the Limestone 

Coast Regional Sporting Academy (LCRSA) inducted its first Inductees in October 2017 

and commenced working with these Athletes in November, as part of a Pilot Program.

Below is a table comparing the regions STARCLUB numbers from 2016-17 to 2017-18. In all areas we have seen an increase in clubs 

registering and progressing through the program. This is due to the support councils have shown to the program.

STARTCLUB STATUS 2016-17 2017-18

Level 1 - Registered

Number of sport and recreation organisations registered in the STARCLUB program
212 232

Level 2 – Submitted

All questions have been answered online as wither Yes, No or In Progress
126 144

Level 3 - Provisional online status achieved 

At least 3 questions in each of Parts 1-5 must be answered YES including all mandatory questions
71 87

Level 4 - Full STARCLUB recognition achieved 

A consultant has met with the club and determined if the club has appropriately met criteria for ‘Recognition’
33 40

The LCRSA has four main objectives:

1. To identify regional sporting talent

2. To educate and develop youth in the region

3. To provide pathways to State and national representation

4. To develop the skills of regional coaches

The 12 Athletes were:

1. Cody Lewis - Hockey

2. Madisyn Freeman - Aussie Rules

3. Brock Keding - Baseball

4. Thomas Bignell - Swimming

5. Connor Prior - Cricket / Soccer

6. Hannah Elliott - Athletics

7. Jade Delaney - Hockey / Tennis / Golf

8. Kynen Adams - Aussie Rules

9. Zachary Walker - Basketball / Aussie Rules

10. Jaxon Rayner - Motorcross / Enduro / Supercross

11. Brad Hann - Athletics

12. Georgia Clarke - Hockey
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These athletes were provided with a 12 month Gym membership, a full muscular skeletal assessment screening and report,  

a 12 month Elite Athlete Strength and Conditioning Program (2 sessions a week at the gym and an at home program), Coaching, 

Educational Sessions (Sports Psychology, Media Training, Coping with Pressure, Sporting Routines and Sports Nutrition),  

and High level testing at the University of SA’s High Performance Centre in Adelaide.

The program has given the athletes the chance to understand the training and preparation requirements to become an elite athlete, as well as improve 

their performances at school as well as on the field or track. 

In December last year the Academy formed a partnership with the University of South Australia. I would like to take this opportunity to personally thank 

Ian McKay (Regional Manager – Uni SA, Mount Gambier Campus) for his passion and drive for our program. Ian, has played a major role in ensuring 

this partnership exists. The Academy uses the Uni SA Mount Gambier Campus for its education sessions. The athletes also were able to travel to 

Adelaide and complete high-level testing usually reserved for professional athletes, at the Uni’s High Performance Centre. This was a fantastic trip and 

the athletes were also able to meet the Minister for Sport and Racing, the Hon. Corey Wingard MP, as part of the State Governments partnership with 

the Academy.

The current intake of Athletes will complete the 12 month program at the end of October 2018. From there we are looking to expand the program at 

a sustainable rate. The Academy is in the process of finalising partnerships with Hockey SA and Athletics SA and is working with a number of other 

State Sporting Bodies to have sport specific programs available to athletes and coaches. We were successful in obtaining funding from the Office for 

Recreation and Sport to extend the program for 12 months with an option for another 12months, dependent on meeting criteria. 

The Academy is also working with Local 

Government and Businesses to ensure the 

program can be a long term one in the region.

The LCRSA athletes have done the Academy 

and our region extremely proud, competing 

at State and National levels in the past year. 

All athletes have been great ambassadors for 

the program. We look forward to continuing 

supporting our current and future LCRSA 

athletes in the coming years.
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OBJECTIVES

MAC CAMPAIGN SUPPORT

INDUSTRY WORKPLACE ENGAGEMENT

The overarching responsibility of the MAC Regional Community Road Safety officer is to advance road 

safety in the South East region whilst promoting and raising awareness of MAC’s road safety programs.  

The priority work areas identified for 2017/2018:

 ∠ MAC Campaign Support

 ∠ Workplace Engagement

 ∠ Digital Engagement

 ∠ Community Engagement

 ∠ Community Road Safety Groups

Our strong relationship with regional print and electronic media enabled the promotion of MAC’s campaign messages throughout the year.  The use of 

our social media (Facebook) was instrumental in pushing the messages out to the media, local members and community road safety groups.  

MAC campaigns such as “It’s a long road to the MCG”, “Dutch Reach’ “Gear up – Ride Safe” “Be a Good Egg”, “Worth the Stop” and the SANFL 

Community Football Country Championships are good examples of supporting MAC’s statewide campaigns.  The “No Winners Here” weekly road 

safety message continued to be circulated to all community road safety groups, Councils, regional media and interested stakeholders.    

The same road safety message was updated each week and placed on the pages of 7 country football associations in South Australia during the 

football and netball season highlighting the unnecessary level of road trauma on regional and rural roads. 

Country Footy SA were able to post this the weekly update on the pages of the majority of SA country football leagues on the weekend of the SA 

Country Football Championships. The weekly emails usually carry a themed MAC road safety message. With SAPOL present the MAC sponsored road 

safety presentation to players and members of the Mundulla Football Club. Campaign results from MAC’s Country Football road safety round, “It’s a 

long road to the MCG”, the LCLGA’s weekly email, “No Winners Here” and our work with Basketball Mount Gambier promoting Fatality Free Friday 

clearly demonstrates that the medium of sport in country communities reaches target audiences at risk and those who have the capacity to positively 

influence the road safety behaviour of others. 

In step with the South Australian Road Safety Strategy – Towards Zero Together we begun workplace activities in alignment with the region’s key 

industries and major employers.  In association with One Forty One Plantations (Forestry/manufacturing) and the establishment of a regional Safe 

Freight Network, progress is being made on improving workplace driving, road safety culture and the interaction of the Heavy Vehicle industry with 

other road users.

This network is expected to include the various sectors that comprise the regional freight task, forestry, livestock, fluids, bulk and general freight and 

contractors. 

Using available training resources from the ARRB and NRSPP and the LGA Training Services we have alerted industry of informative and business 

improvement (road safety/resultant economic benefits) opportunities through webinars.  For example, “Making Safety a Stronger Priority” highlighting 

the learning points from Daryl Dickenson’s Transport case study, a Queensland based SME who have over time embedded a road safety culture with 

their employees. 

Councils have also been encouraged to participate in online webinars that cover national issues and best practice on Logistics/Construction of Safe 

Cycling and Safe Cycling as offered by the NRSSP.

The Regional Community Road Safety Officer is now a member of the LCLGA’s Roads and Transport Working Group.  This role has gained greater 

significance now that the Australian Government’s expects road safety applications to outline benefits as essential components of funding submissions 

for roads and infrastructure projects.

Input into SA Power Networks regional consultations contributing regional views on roadside power infrastructure.

Feedback provided to the Manager of Destination Development at the South Australian Tourism Commission (SATC) on the condition of our regional 

road network and the impact on our self drive market. 
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DIGITAL ENGAGEMENT

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Our use of social media that began in 2016 is now an important part of our communications package.  Facebook posts highlighting campaigns, 

issues and events are also used to educate all road users.   Regular social media posts promote and share current MAC road safety campaigns.

Opportunities are also seized to promote timely road safety messages that relate to regional issues for example, fatigue, drink/drug driving and 

speed.  For example, one of our posts in late winter on the dangers of “Black Ice” on roads reached over 6,600 and engaged with 800 people.

Conduct a “Lights on During Daylight Driving” radio road safety message that began on Triple M and Star FM at the beginning of Winter 2018 

and continued for the month of June.  This campaign and others was also made available to community radio stations in 

the Tatiara and the Lower South East.

An innovative road safety campaign was introduced in the lead up to Christmas 2017 with The Border Watch newspaper 

group who have 3 regional newspapers in the South East as well as an online presence and e-edition.  This campaign 

involved members of SAPOL, the SA Ambulance Services, SES and the SAMFS as well as Local Government delivering 

messages in both digital and print formats.  6 videos were produced with first responders imparting sobering road safety 

message, urging people to adopt safe driving behaviours.  11,309 Facebook users were reached in this Xmas Holiday 

campaign.

The Limestone Coast has the highest tourist visitation rates in regional South Australia and the self-drive market 

comprises most of our visitors.  Recognising this, a creative info-page and accompanying editorial was placed in the 

2018 “Stay Another Day” regional tourism magazine.  The magazine with a print run of 20,000 has a long shelf life and 

offers several road safety tips to keep visitors, residents and our roads safer. 

Regional media has continued to demonstrate their commitment to regional road safety with their willingness to distribute 

key road safety messages. We acknowledge and thank ABC SE Local Radio, Southern Cross Austereo, WIN Television, 

The Border Watch and Fairfax regional media for their support.

In conjunction with the combined Rotary Clubs of Mount Gambier assist with the coordination of Road 

Safety Education (RSE) “Rotary Young Driver Awareness (RYDA) program in September 2017.  99 

Year 11 students (L and P plate drivers) from 7 regional schools participated.  RYDA is now entering 

its 4th year and planning is underway to establish RYDA in the Tatiara region in 2019.

Road safety presentations were made to local service clubs, e.g. Rotary, Young Leo’s (Lions), as well as Probus who 

participated in “Safer Seniors” presentations.   

Assist with the promotion and coordination of the Annual Regional “Lights and Car Safety Check “championed by 

Rotary in the Limestone Coast.  Evening sessions were held at Bordertown, Naracoorte, Millicent and Mount Gambier 

the first Thursday after the end of daylight saving.

We produced a 2018 Road Safety Calendar with student participation from 2 regional Primary Schools, a collaboration with the Mount Gambier and District 

Road Safety Group, SAPOL, SAMFS and Local Government.  Released at participating schools in December 2017 with joint road safety presentations from 

SAPOL and the LCLGA.

Reinstated the “Slow Down, Kids Around” and “Hold My Hand” Summer Holiday time campaign aimed at drivers, parents and young children in all member 

Councils.   Running from December 2017 to February 2018, this popular initiative was also embraced by our regional media 

and Town Progress Associations in some of our smaller communities in 2018. 

Coordinated the visits of 2 professional racing teams competing 

in the National Road Series “Tour of the Great South Coast” to 

local schools.  These visits are now entrenched in the annual tour 

and last year over 400 students from 4 schools attended sessions 

informing students on road safety, safe cycling along with health 

and wellbeing.
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Led a successful 3 day road safety campaign coinciding with “Fatality Free Friday” in May 2018.  This involved Local Government, SAPOL, SAMFS, a community 

road safety group, the Mount Gambier Pioneers Basketball Club and regional media.  The Pioneers are the region’s highest profile sporting club who successfully 

compete in the South East Australia Basketball League (SEABL) and who share MAC’s commitment to road safety.  The Pioneers Board have expressed their desire 

to repeat the Fatality Free Friday campaign in 2019.

Assisted managers of regional Migrant Resource Centres (MRC’s) identify and take up opportunities for driver education for new arrivals.  

Promoted the availability of partner programs to community groups, sports, service, senior’s clubs and business and community groups. 

Promoted the existence of Funding Grants, e.g. DPTI’s Resident’s Win, Community Grants supported by MAC, RAA’s 

regional safety grants, Bendigo Bank Community Fund, OTR and the Foundation for Regional and Rural Renewal (FRRR) 

“Small Grants” program.

Together with the District Council of Robe we assisted the Board of the Robe Community Bank with the development of a 

road safety project that will inform International drivers on road safety and rules.  A further project has been flagged aimed 

at pedestrian safety during peak holiday time and festivals.   

Raised opportunities for the community to engage in community consultation and “Have their Say” on road safety issues, 

e.g. the proposed changes to the licensing of Motor Cycle Riders in SA.

Liaised with regional Councils about the need to upgrade dated and dilapidated roadside safety signs.

Increased road safety awareness by promoting the International “World Day of Remembrance for Road Traffic Victims” in 

November 2017 and Road Safety Week in May 2018.

With support of the Department of Planning, Transport and Infrastructure (DPTI), and the Council of the Ageing (COTA), facilitate “Moving Right Along” sessions to 

Probus Clubs in the Tatiara region.

Assist COTA with the local recruitment of “Peer Group” educators.

Assisted the RAA’s Education Programs unit with the regional delivery of road safety education sessions 

in several our towns and communities.  Opening up rural access to their “Years Ahead”, Car Fit” and the 

correct fitting of child restraints information and training sessions. Assisted in creating opportunities for 

residents to contribute to RAA surveys on the conditions of the State’s road network were also promoted.

COMMUNITY ROAD SAFETY GROUPS
Actively engaged, supported and encouraged Community Road Safety Groups that operate in the Tatiara, Wattle Range and Mount Gambier and 

surrounding districts.  The Regional Community Road Safety Officer regularly attended these meetings often out of office hours and facilitates the 

sharing of information between the groups.

Guided Community Road Safety Groups with their localised and region activities, e.g. the development of action or strategic plans.

Assisted the Wattle Range Road Safety Group and Council with their major project, the upgrade of the regional road safety training centre in Millicent.

Encouraged and promoted the number of “Driver Reviver” roadside stations in the Limestone Coast and adjacent regions for travellers at peak 

holidays times such as Easter and Christmas.

When necessary, assisted road safety groups draw road hazards to the attention of the relevant authorities. For example, access issues for vehicles to 

pull into and out of rest areas and in school precincts.

In conjunction with the Mount Gambier and District Road Safety Group assisted with the development of “Slow Down” decals for placing on 

householder’s kerbside rubbish bins located in strategic places within 2 Council areas. 

Promoted the availability of programs offered by MAC partner’s, viz, SAPOL, RAA, DPTI and RAP and encouraged groups to access youth-based 

initiatives e.g. Prevent Alcohol Related Road Trauma in Youth (PARTY).
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PLANNING FOR SEA LEVEL RISE IN THE LIMESTONE COAST (LIDAR MAPPING)

HIGHLIGHTS

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

 ∠ A successful application was submitted by the LCLGA under the Natural Disaster Resilience Program (NDRP) to complete LiDAR mapping for 

the coastline and high risk areas from the SA/VIC border to the Coorong/ Murray mount. The Laser Imaging Detection and Ranging information 

will be used to identify assets that are threatened (social, cultural, built and environmental), and to progress the actions to protect and adapt 

coastal communities and environments from the likely impacts of sea level rise, storm surge, inundation and increased erosion. This information 

can also be used to determine areas for future development that are not likely to be at risk and to amend development plan to restrict 

development.  

 ∠ The Contractor commenced the LiDAR data acquisition and photogrammetry in May 2018. Data products of Penola and Naracoorte Creek have 

been delivered, and the remaining data are currently being processed. Complete data sets will be delivered in August 2018.

 ∠ The LCLGA on behalf of 7 constituent councils submitted a grant application to the NRDP for funds to undertake data interpretation and 

inundation mapping.

 ∠ Earth Hour, a global environmental initiative aiming to raise 

awareness about climate change, was hosted for the first time 

in the Limestone Coast region. Various awareness raising 

activities were conducted during Earth hour Week (19 – 23 

March 2018) and Earth Hour Day (24 March 2018) in the City 

of Mount Gambier, District Council of Grant, Wattle Range 

Council, Naracoorte Lucindale Council, District Council of 

Robe and Tatiara District Council. 

 ∠ Activities included displays at local libraries, accompanied 

with selection of books and DVDs in relation to climate 

mitigation and adaptation; documentary screening, school 

lessons, dinner by candle light at restaurant, and switch off of 

lights at Council buildings.

 ∠ Collateral (print and digital) in relation to the changing 

climate in the Limestone Coast, climate projections and 

climate adaptation such as infographics, pull-up banner, posters and inspiration pack (information kit) were developed as part of education and 

awareness raising program.

 ∠ The Project Officer continues to engage with local community to raise awareness and understanding about climate change. This include the 

elderly community, members of community with disability, schools, migrants, hospitality sector (café, bar, restaurant), health sector and industry. 

Engagement approaches vary from face-to-face communication, presentation, small group discussion to electronic mailing network.

Following the 2016 Limestone Coast Regional Climate Change Adaptation Plan and Sector Agreement between the Government of 

South Australia (represented by the Minister for Climate Change), the LCLGA, RDA LC and the SE NRM Board, the Limestone Coast 

Climate Adaptation project commenced in August 2017 with membership of the committee and a Terms of Reference being adopted at 

the October 2017 LCLGA Board meeting. Prae Wongthong was appointed to the role of Climate Adaptation Project Officer.

Key responsibilities include:

 ∠ Facilitating and overseeing the Planning for Sea Level Rise in the Limestone Coast Project (LiDAR Mapping)

 ∠ Developing a Community Education and Awareness Strategy for Climate Adaptation (Climate Education and Awareness Strategy - CEAS)

 ∠ Supporting Councils and partner stakeholders to implement the CEAS

 ∠ Strengthening collaboration and building community connections to ensure the long-term success of the CEAS

PROJECT REPORTS - ANNUAL REPORTS 2017-18
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CLIMATE ADAPTATION

STRATEGIC
 ∠ Education and awareness raising is a cross-sectoral 

adaptation option which is relevant to multiple sectors and 

multiple audiences.  Improved climate change awareness 

and education is one factor that is globally, nationally and 

regionally seen as a facilitative tool to improve adaptive 

capacity in the society as a whole.

 ∠ The Limestone Coast Climate Education and Awareness 

Strategy forms the commitment of the LCLGA to ensure that 

the community and partner stakeholders have the information 

and support they need to make the right decisions. 

 ∠ The CEAS recognise climate change as multifaceted 

phenomenon, focus on positive and inspiring actions and 

encourage actions towards multidisciplinary approach. 

 ∠ Four priority areas of the CEAS are:  

I) Understanding and communication;  

II) Adaptive capacity and community resilience;  

III) Behaviour change; and  

IV) Partnership and collaboration.

 ∠ As climate continues to change throughout the Limestone Coast, impacts will be experienced by our communities, natural ecosystems, 

business and industries. Climate adaptation and mitigation cannot be achieved by an effort in isolation. The LCCAC will continue to support 

Councils and partner stakeholders in tackling priority issues like climate-induced inundation in coastal areas, impacts of extreme events to 

vulnerable community and water management for the benefit of community and environments.
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SUBSTANCE MISUSE

AOD EDUCATION IN SCHOOLS

COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

COMMUNITY FORUMS

 ∠ Researched evidence based AOD school educative programs.  Including discussions with Alcohol & Drug Foundation (ADF) who pointed towards 

“Climate Schools”. Climate Schools is an on-line, cartoon based, Canadian educative program which has been upgraded and value-added by 

NDARC (National Drug and Research Centre) specifically for Australian students.  Early research shows that alcohol and cannabis use has been 

significantly delayed in students who have undertaken Climate Schools.

 ∠ Negotiated with NDARC for the cost of Climate Schools be more accessible for smaller regional schools.  Therefore the cost for use of Climate Schools 

has dropped for every Limestone Coast School from $900 to $250 per school.

 ∠ Tenison Woods College has undertaken Climate Schools with Year 10 Cohort.  

 ∠ Tenison Woods College Year 10’s will gain 10 SACE Points when supporting year 9 teachers delivery of Climate Schools to Year 9’s, and show case 

their learnings to their parents at a parent evening in Term 3.  Students will receive a Certificate of Participation in being a Year 10 Leader and Peer 

Support from Substance Misuse Limestone Coast.

 ∠ Tenison Woods College Wellbeing Teacher, made a power point for Teachers to use with activities for students that re-affirms Climate Schools’ 

messages.  This can be used as an adjunct for the educative program, and can be used by other Limestone Coast schools, cherry picking lessons if 

they are time poor and cannot fit in all 6 lessons.

 ∠ Allendale East Area School has initiated engagement with Climate Schools.

 ∠ Tenison Woods College and Substance Misuse Limestone Coast have featured in an LDAT story on the ADF Website; 

https://community.adf.org.au/implement/stories/connection-reduce-substance/

Substance Misuse Limestone Coast very much appreciates the contribution made by the LCLGA in supporting the activities  

of the programme. Since the signing of the agreement with the Alcohol and Drug Fountain in April 2017 the Substance Misuse  

Project Officer and Group have made significant progress in achieving their goals.

Summary of Outcomes: Developing of Communication Plan and Action Plan for stakeholder engagement in Community

SMLC has $1000 seed funding for community groups in each Council area to develop and provide programs for disengaged persons to be involved in 

active pursuits to minimize boredom and vulnerability and isolation.

 ∠ Met with Limestone Coast Council CEO’s, Community Development Officers, Rotary Clubs, Lions Clubs and community groups to discuss community 

partnership project, including seed funding for community people to engage in primary prevention programs for their regions vulnerable populations.  

The following outcomes are a result of SMLC meeting with community groups, clubs and Councils.

 ∠ Port MacDonnell Bay Town Group are forming a sub-group “District Carers Connecting”, with the aim to 

connect people in the Wattle Range Council area who are caring for others, to expand their world, make 

new connections, reduce isolation and loneliness and participate in therapeutic activities.  They will 

be incorporating a mini-bus to transport people from Tarpeena to District Carers Connecting activities, 

furthering connection of isolated people.

 ∠ Kingston SE Branch of Watch SA are partnering with SMLC and the Kingston District Council to connect 

with isolated and vulnerable people to reduce isolation, loneliness and increase their positive activity 

options.

 ∠ Specialist Speakers engaged: 

 ∠ Mt Gambier Community Forum, opened by Troy Bell MP, approximately 120 audience members

 ∠ Bordertown Community Forum, opened by Nick McBride MP, approximately 70 audience members

 ∠ Community Forums planned for District Council of Robe, 30th July 2018, Kingston District Council, 13th August, 

Naracoorte Lucindale Council 20th August and Wattle Range Council 3rd September 2018.
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LCLGA acknowledges the Constituent Council Mayors, Elected Members, Chief Executive Officers  

and staff for their support of the regional role of the Association. 

During 2017 - 2018, the LCLGA Board engaged a small team to implement a diverse and comprehensive regional work plan: Dominic 

Testoni (Executive Officer), Michaela Bell (Projects Manager), Tony Elletson (LCLGA Star Club Field Officer), Rob Forgan (Community 

Road Safety Officer), Biddie Shearing (LCLGA Tourism Industry Development Manager) June Saruwaka (Regional Waste Management 

Coordinator) and Mae Steele (Executive Support Officer). The Team farewelled June Saruwaka (Regional Waste Management 

Coordinator until March 2018, Maternity Leave). and welcomed Prae Wongthong (Climate Adaptation Project Officer in August 2017 & 

Regional Waste Management Coordinator in March 2018)

The Local Government Association SA has continued to provide strong support to LCLGA and its members throughout the year. LCLGA 

acknowledges the contributions of SAROC members, Chief Executive Officer Matt Pinnegar and the many LGA staff that have supported 

LCLGA throughout the year.

The Local Government Research and Development Scheme funding has enabled LCLGA to undertake a range of additional projects 

throughout the year, both through additional Research and Development Fund projects and via the Regional Capacity Building Grants. 

LCLGA enjoys a close working relationship with RDALC Board members and staff. 

Dominic Testoni 

Executive Officer
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